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Report of Independent Auditor
To Shareholders of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited

I have aundited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the related consolidated -
statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the separate financial statements of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited for the same
periods. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the Company and its
subsidiaries as to their correciness and the completeness of the presentation. My responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits, I did not audit the financial
statements of two subsidiaries, Laguna Beach Club Limited and Laguna (1) Company Limited,
(2007: three_subsidiarics, Laguna Beach Club Limited, Laguna (1) Company Limited and Lijiang
Banyan Tree Hotel Limited), which ‘are included in these consolidated financial statements. As at 31
December 2007 and 2006, these subsidiaries had total assets of Baht 1,846.6 million and Baht 2,145.5
million, respectively and total revenues for the years then ended of Baht 420.8 million and Baht 441.8
million, respectively. The financial statements of these subsidiaries were audited by their auditors
whose reports have been furnished to me, and my opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included
for those subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial

statements, is based solely on the reports of the other anditors.

I conducted my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that T plan and perform the aundit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An andit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evalnating
the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audits and the reports of other auditors

as referred to in the first paragraph, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.
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In my opinion, based on my audits and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Laguna
Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited and ifs subsidiaries and of Laguna Resorts & Hotels
Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2007 and 2006 and the resulis of their operations and

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Without qualifying my opinion on the above financial statements, I draw attention to the matter as
discussed in Note 4 to the financial statemenis whereby, effective 1 January 2007, the Company
changed its accounting policy for recording investments in subsidiaries and associates in the separate
financial statements from the equity method to the cost method. The Company has thus restated the
separate financial statements as at 31 December 2006 and for the year then ended fo reflect this

accounting change.

e
Sophon Permsirivallop
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No, 3182

Ernst & Young Office Limited
Bangkok: 26 February 2008




LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

ASSETS

Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable - net
Amounts due from related companies
Inventories - net
Property development cost - net
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Restricted deposits at financial institution
Long-{erm trade accounts receivable
Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associated companies
Othet long-tenn investments
Long-term loans to subsidiaries
Long-term loans fo associated company
Long-term loans to employees
Property, plant and equipment - net

~ Land awaiting development

Leaschold rights - net
Goodwill on conselidation
Other non-current agsels

Teotal non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

MG N &

u
12
13
14

15
15
16
12

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Cansolidated financial statements

(Unit; Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006

{Restated)
1533422200 1,087.923,520 855575874 103,113,656
1,860,905,010  1,116,496,985 583,538,199 66,899,074
108,860,861 33,256,763 57,037,880 30,004,929
158,103,959 158,314,368 17,135,024 19,363,460
875,919,386 593,414,126 221,483,990 29,639,622
340,936,184 421,283,706 171,150,301 162,076,519
4,878,148,190  3,410,680,468  1,905921,268 411,097,269
2,140,000 2,140,000 . .
144,133,285 45,168,708 . -
- - 3491257814 3,491,257,814
269,105,050 - - .
210,399,386 210,399,386 13,674,001 13,674,001
- -+ 1,480,600,000  1,137,000,000
298,707,673 - . -
34,045,000 - 10,803,000 -
18,667,452,348  10,477,003,044  2,001,248,648 824,008,317
432,124,018 638,350,200 28,638,873 -
45,068,721 84,328,941 . -
19,794,338 20,305,564 . -
12,720,177 18,396,056 6,863,477 5,900,799
20,135,689,996 11,497,131,899  7,033,085813  5,471,840,931
25,013,838,186  14,907,821,367  §939,007,081  5,882,938,200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,




LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006
{Unit: Baht}
Consolidated financial statentents  Separate finnncial siafements

Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
{Restated)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilitles
Short-term loans from financial institutions 17 862,000,000 637,000,000 470,060,000 415,000,000
Trade accounts payable 271,473,155 270,304,320 33,420,740 34,760,668
Current portion of long-term loans from financial
institutions 19 824,914,000 648,597,000 233,000,000 140,000,000
Amounts due to related companies 7 71,455,192 96,695,820 62,219,706 43,141,178
Corporate incoms tex payable 101,015,266 135,140,265 - -
Other current liabilities 18 1,404,939,728 985,778,540 284,821,823 108,467,067
Total current liabilities 3,535,797,241  2,773,515,945  1,083,462,269 741,368,913
Non-current labilitles
Long-term loans from subsidiaries 7 - - 1,040,350,000 556,750,000
Long-term loans from related company 7 - 416,449,627 - -
Long-term loans from financial inslitutions
- net of current portion 19 2,480,347,743 3,080,271,743 399,000,000 632,000,000
Other non-current liabilities 90,600,118 55,933,570 5,878,150 8,430,010
Total non-current labilities 2,570,947,861 3,552,654,940 1,445,228,150 1,197,180,010
Total liabilities 6,106,745,202 6,326,170,885 2,528,690,419 1,938,548,923
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 20
Registered

211,675,358 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each
(31 December 2006: 84,670,143 ordinary shares
of Baht 10 each) - 2,116,753,580 846,701,430 2,116,753,580 846,701,430
{ssued and fully paid-up
166,682,701 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each
(31 December 2006; 84,670,143 ordinary shares

of Baht 10 each) 1,666,827,010 846,701,430 1,666,827,010 846,701,430
Premium on ordinary shares 2,062,460,582  2,062,460,582  2,062,460,582  2,062,460,582
Other surpluses
Capital reserve 21 634,698,720 634,698,720 - B
Revaluation surplus 9,869,857,161 1,789,995,216 1,562,542,225 428,607,642
Unrealised loss on available-for-sale securities 14 (28,856,095} (28,856,095) (10,175,999) (10,175,999)
Translation adjustment 74,347,437 72,905,170 - -
Retained eamings
Appropriated - statutory reserve 22 84,670,143 84,670,143 84,670,143 84,670,143
Unappropriated 3,431,673,827 2,353,781,781 1,013,992,701 532,125,479
3,516,343,970  2,438,451,924  1,098,662,844 616,795,622
Equity attributable to Company's shareholders 17,795,678,785  7,816,356,947  6,410,316,662  3,944,389,277
Minority interest - equity attributable to
minority shareholders of subsidiaries 1,111,414,199 765,293,535 - -
Total shareholders' equity 18,907,092,984  8,581,650,482  6,410,316,602  3,944,389,277

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 25,013,838.186 _14,907,821,367 _ B939,007.081 _ 5,882,938200

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

DIRECTORS




Revenues

LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Note

Revenues from hotel operations

Revenues from property development operations

Revenues from office rental operations

Interest income

Foreigh exchange gain

Other income
Total revenunes

Expenses

Hotel operations expenses

Caost of property development operations

Cost of office rental operations

Selling and administrative expenses

Directors' remuneration 23

Share of loss from investments in associated company

Total expenses

Income before interest expenses and corporate income fax

Interest expenses

Corporate income tax

Income afier corporate income tax

Net income attributable to minority interest

Net income for the year

Basie earnings per share 26

Net income for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary share (shares)

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated {inancial statements  Separate financial statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
{Restated)
4,122,244,996  3,589,806,682 538,378,014 475,512;469
2,819,732,911  2,327,817,464 961,034,521 4,120,000
67,557,920 30,764,484 - -
65,388,066 26,797,803 89,745,135 49,732,344
9,226,816 87,965,436 38,360,363 98,217,273
62,230,319 42,500,004 321,371,778 1,475,526,539
7,146,381,028  6,135,651,873  1,948,889,811  2,103,108,625
3,217,304,715 3,015,567,942 362,177,924 339,508,730
1,717,105,850 1,203;044,509 487,530,269 21,543,214
55,467,337 89,564,539 - -
370,916,965 276,793,278 293,246,053 236,217,899
4,464,500 5,494,000 4,464,500 5,494,000
4,954,548 - - -
5,370,214,175 4,5%90,464,268 1,147,418,746 602,763,843
1,176,166,853 1,565,187,605 801,471,063 1,500,344,782
(220,658,513}  (202,055,630)  (107,928485)  (145,819,995)
(188,959,722) (228,380,356) - -
1,366,548,618 1,134,751,619 693,542,580  1,354,524,787
(76,981,214) (21,874,470) - -
1,289,567,404 1,112,877,149 693,542,580  1,354,524,787
10.60 13.14 5.70 16.00
121,671,226 84,670,143 121,671,226 84,670,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financinl statements  Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
{Restated)
Cash flows frem (used in) operafing activites
Net income for the year 1,289,567,404 1,112,877,149 693,542,580  1,354,524,787
Adjustments 1o recongile net income to net cash provided
by (paid from} operating activities
Net income attributable to minority interest 76,981,214 21,874,470 - -
Interest expenses 220,658,513 202,055,630 107,928,485 145,819,995
Corporate income tax 188,259,722 228,380,356 - -
Income before interest expenses and corporate income tax  ~ 1,776,166,853 1,565,187,605 801,471,065 1,500,344,782
Adjusiments for:
Depreciation 368,435,621 401,334,179 45,036,389 39,562,675
Amortisation of lensehold rights 3,451,070 5,770,097 - -
Amortisation of (negative goodwill} /goodwill
on consolidation 511,226 511,225 - -
Allowance for doubtful accounts . 408,935 4,538,719 - -
Provision for obsolete inventory 3,259,566 3,656,229 . -
Share of loss from investment in assaciated company 4,954,548 - - -
Gain on the dissolution of a subsidiary - - - {1,220,648)
Gain on the 15 percent divesiment of a subsidiary - (44,344) - -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (gain) 11,454,625 (114,851,071) (22,675,413) (92,225,457)
Gain on property sales recognition - (34,598,969) - -
Loss {gain} on sales of property, plant and equipment 492,824 {4,697,352) - (630,251)
Write off property, plant and equipment 345,732 319,649 - -
Allowance for impairment of tand (reversal) - (15,806,325} - 4,579,115 -
Gain on sales of investiment (6,177,464) - - -
Gain on sales of leasehold rights - (5,358,085) - -
Decrease (increase} in operating assets
Trade accounts receivable (751,014,036)  (310,346,400)  (516,639,125) (6,531,683}
Amounts due from related companies (59,135,221) (8,792,429} 26,793,600 (6,841,866}
Inventories (12,667,849) {17,360,094) 2,228,445 (1,935,784)
Property development cost (172,422,758) (56,824,263)  (189,333,100) (29,639,622)
Other current assels 26,618,549 (112,229,342) 15,811,553 (58,191,873)
Long-term {rade accounts receivable {98,964,577) (11,785,299) - -
Other non-current assets 5,675,879 1,333,130 (962,678) 700,318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade accounts payable 1,379,005 13,293,042 (1,339,928) (7,792,805)
Arnounts due to related companies 13,619,508 33,294,493 21,078,792 24,412,563
Other current liabilities 441,093,78¢ 234,958,075 177,557,678 41,525,482
Gther non-current liabilities 34,666,548 (14,793,394) (2,551,860} (66,200}
Net cash flows from operating activities before
interest and income tax paid 1,576,346,043 1,572,515,401 307,467,331 1,401,469,631
Interest paid (222,044,983) (189,897,867} (111,371,021) (142,576,126)
Income tax paid (242,628,287 (116,351,510} (2,209,919) -
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,111,672,778 1,266,266,024 193,886,391 1,258,893,505
Cash flows from (used in} investing activities
Tnerease in long-term loans to subsidiaries - - (343,600,000)  (532,500,000)
Increase in long-term loans to associated company (36,393,000} - - ' -
Increase in long-term loans to employees 34,045,000} - (10,803,000) -
Cash payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment (756,377,913}  (1,787,270,806) (94,143,891) (83,758,462)
Cash received from sales of property, plant and equipment 4,863,530 9,759,988 72,496 909,122
Tncrease in restricted deposits at financial institutions - (140,000} - ' -
Inorease in investment in associated company (57,748,278} - - -
Cash received from the dissolution of a subsidiary - - - 1,730,648
Cash received from the 15 percent divestment of a subsidiary - 150,000 - -
Cash received from sales of leasehold rights ) - 25,612,448 - -
Cash decreased from sale of investment in subsidiary (145,167,069) - - -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,024,867,730) (1,751,888,370)  (448,474,395)  (613,618,692)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Cash received from share capital increase 820,125,580 - 820,125,580 -
Payment of dividends (262,824,858) (40,001,600) (211,675,358} -
Increase in short-term loans from financial institutions 225,000,000 47,000,000 £5,000,000 18,000,000
Increase in long-term loans from subsidiaries - - 483,600,000 -
Increzse (decrease) in long-term Toans from relafed company - 214,033,605 - (334,000,000}
DPraw down of long-term loans from financial institutions 224,990,000 1,227,010,000 - . -
Repayment of long-term loans from financial institutions (648,597,000)  (592,920,000)  (140,000,000) (280,000,000}
Cash received from minority sharsholder for
share capital increase of subsidiaries - 48,600,000 - -
Net cash flows from (used in} financing activities 358,693,722 903,713,005  1,007,050,222 (596,000,000}
Net ingrease in cash and cash equivalents 445,498,770 418,090,659 752,462,218 49,274,813
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,087,923,520 669,832,861 103,113,656 53,838,843
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,533,422,290 1,087,923,520 855,575,874 103,113,656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finencial statements.




LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statemernts  Separate financinl statemenlts
2007 2006 2007 2006
(Restated)
Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash items

Restructure of investment to loan to associated company 102,725,049 - - -
Transferred land and construction to property development cost

and land awaiting development - net 188,006,266 283,471,839 31,150,141 Lo
Increase in revaluation surplus on assets 8,593,176,964 - 1,184,963,968 -
Allowance for doubtfilt accounts utilised ' 4,513,591 334,764 - -
Amortization of revaluation surplus 40,251,416 43,624,076 9,451,645 10,180,450

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,




LAGUNA RESORTS & HOTELS PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007 AND 2006

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited (“The Company”) is a public company
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. Its major shareholder is Banyan Tree Holdings Limited,

which was incorporated in Singapore.

The Company and its subsidiaries is principally engaged in the hotel business and property
development. There are four hotels in Laguna Phuket, namely Dusit Laguna Resort, Laguna
Beach Resort, Sheraton Grande Laguna Phuket and Banyan Tree Phuket, located in Phuket
province and one hotel, the Banyan Tree Bangkok, Iocated in Bangkok. The subsidiaries also
engage in operating a golf club (Laguna Phuket Golf Club), sales of merchandise (Banyan Tree
Gallery), office and resort rental, property development and sale of holiday club memberships.

The Company’s and some of its subsidiaries’ registered address is 21/124A, 21/13, 21/65B,
21/66B, 21/67 Thai Wah Tower I, 6", 22*, 23" Floor, South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek,

Sathorn, Bangkok.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards
enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547, The presentation of the
financial statements has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification
of the Department of Business Development dated 14 September 2001, issued under the
Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where

otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

(a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and the following subsidiaries:




Percentage of Country of
Company's name Nature of business Sharcholding incorporation
2007 2006
Subsidiaties directly held by the Company.
TWR - Holdings Limited Investment holding and 100.0 100.0 Thailand
property development
Lagung Holiday Club Limited Holiday club membership 100,0 100.0 Thailand
and property development
Cheer Golden Limited Tnvestment holding 100.0 100.0 Hong Kong
Laguna Grande Limited Operating a golf elob and 100.0 100.0 Thailand
propetty development
Laguna (3) Limited Property developmcntm 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited Sale of merchandise 51.0 51.0 Thailand
Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Pte, Ltd. Sale of merchandise 51.0 51,0 Singapore
Subsidiaries held through TWR - Holdings Timited
Pai Samart Development Company Limited  Property development ® 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Mae Chan Property Company Limited Property development o 160.0 100.0 Thailand
Phuket Resort Development Limited Property development @ 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Twin Watess Development Company Limited Property development 140.0 100.0 Thailand
PT AVC Indonesia Holiday club membership 140.0 100.0 Indonesia
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited Hotel operations and property 100.0 100.0 Thailand
development
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Lid. Hatel operations - 70.0 China
Leguna Beach Club Limited Hotel aperations 60.0 60.0 Thailand
Laguna (1} Limited Praperty development ® 60.0 60.0 Thailand
Talang Development Company Limited Propetty development o 50.0 50.0 Thailand
Thai Wah Plaza Limited Hotel operations, lease of 100.0 100.0 Thailand
office building space and
property development
Thai Wah Tower Company Limited Lease of office building space 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited Properly development o 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Laguna Excursions Limited Travel operations 49.0 49.0 Thailand
Subsidiari 1 rande Limited
Bangtao (1) Limited Property development @ 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Bangtao (2) Limited Property development 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Bangtao (3) Limited Property development 0. 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Bangtao (4} Limited Property development @ 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Bangtao Dsvelopment Limited Property development @ 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Bangtao Grande Limited Hotel operations 100.0 100.0 Thailand
Laguna Cenlral Limited Dormant §5.0 85.0 Thailand
Subsidiaries held throngh the Company and three subsidiaries
Laguna Service Company Limited Provide utilities and other 89.2 89.2 Thailand

services to hotels of the
Company and subsidiaries

(1)  Hold land plots for futuse development,
(2)  Own the land on which the 4 hotels are situated.
{3)  Own the land on which Banyan Tree Bangkok is situated.




The Company has a 60 percent sharcholding in Léguna Beach Club Limited.
However, the Company has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 50
percent in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the Articles of

Association,

The Company has a 49 percent sharcholding in Laguna Excursions Limited,
However, the Company has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at
100 percent after deducting the cumulative preferential annual dividend of 15 percent
of the par value of the preference shares, in accordance with the income sharing

percentage in the Articles of Association.

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited (LBTL) divested 20.96 percent of equity interest in
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co, Lid. (LBTH) effective 1 Jannary 2007 whereby the
equify interest ratio of LBTL in LBTH was decreased from 70.00 percent to 49,04
percent. As a result, LBTH’s status changed from that of a subsidiary to an associated
company on 1 Janvary 2007. Accordingly, LBTH accounts are no longer

consolidated in the financial statements but equity accounted instead.

The percentage of the tofal assets and total revenues of the major subsidiaries in
relation to the tofal assets and total revenues as included in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:

Percentage of total assets Percentage of total revenues included
included in the consolidated in the consolidated income stafements
Subsidiaries balance sheets as at 31 December for the year ended 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006
Bangtac Development Limited 15.7 11.2 - 0.6
Bangtao Grande Limited a5 1.4 15.0 13.7
Laguna Beach Club Limited 4.3 51 59 5.9
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited 13.4 15.9 15.6 20.7
Laguna Grande Limited 7.0 43 3.1 7.5
Laguna Holiday Club Limited 35 5.7 9.0 10.5
TWR - Holdings Limited 22 2.7 ’ 103 3.6
Thai Wah Plaza Limited 13.0 14.5 11.6 225

(b)

The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Thai
Baht at the closing exchange rate as to assets and liabilities, and at monthly average
exchange rates as to revenues and expenses. The resultant differences have been

shown under the caption of “Translation adjustment” in shareholders’ equity.
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2.3

(c} Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have

been eliminated from the consolidated ﬂqancial statements.

(d) Investments in the subsidiary companies as recorded in the Company's bocks of

account are eliminated against the equity of the subsidiary companies. The resultant

differences are amortised over a period of 20 years commencing as from the date of

acquisition of the investtnent.

The separate financial statements, which present investments in subsidiaries presented

under the cost method, have been prepared solely for the benefit of the public.

. ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Federation of Accounting Professions (FAP) has issued Notifications No, 9/2550, 38/2550
and 62/2550 regarding Accounting Standards. The notifications mandate the use of the following

new Accounting Standards.

(@

(b)

Thai Accounting Standards which are effective for the current year

TAS 44 (revised 2007)

TAS 45 (revised 2007)
TAS 46 (revised 2007)

Consolidated Financial Statements and Separate Financial
Statements
Investments in Associates

Interests in Joint Ventures

These accounting standards became effective for the financial statements for fiscal years

beginning on or after 1 January 2007. Accordingly, the Company changed its accounting

policy for recording investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements in order

to comply with the revised Thai Accounting. Standards No. 44 and 45 as discussed in

Note 4.

Thai Accounting Standards which are not effective for the current year

TAS 25 (revised 2007)
TAS 29 (revised 2007)
TAS 31 (revised 2007)
TAS 33 (revised 2007)
TAS 35 (revised 2007)

Cash Flow Statements

Leases

Inventories

Rorrowing Costs

Presentation of Financial Statements




TAS 39 (revised 2007)  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

TAS 41 (revised 2007)  Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 43 (revised 2007) Business Combinations

TAS 49 (revised 2007) Construction Contracts

TAS 51 Intangible Assets

These accounting standards will become effective for the financial statements for fiscal
years beginning on or after 1 January 2008, The management has assessed the effect of
these revised accounting standards and believes that they will not have any significant
impact on the financial statements for the year in which they are initially applied, except
for TAS 43 (revised 2007). TAS 43 (revised 2007) does not require the Company to
amortise goodwill acquited in a business combination. Such goodwill is instead to be tested
for impairment, and measvred at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. This
accounting standard applies to goodwill arising from a business combinations for which the
agreement date is on or afier 1 January 2008. Previously recognised goodwill can be
accounted for prospectively, with the Company discontinuing amortisation of the goodwill
and instead testing for impairment, as from the beginning of the first fiscal period starting

on or after 1 Janvary 2008.

4, CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR RECORDING INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES IN THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On 1 January 2007, the Company changed its accounting policy for recording investments in
subsidiaries in the separate financial statements from the equity method to the cost method, in
compliance with Accounting Standard No. 44 (Revised 2007) regarding “Consolidated Financial
Statements and Separate Financial Statements”, under which investments in subsidiaries are to be

presented in the separate financial statements under the cost method.




In this regard, the Company has restated the previous period’s separate financial statements as
though the investments in the subsidiaries had originally been recorded using the cost method.
The change has the effect of decreasing net income in the separate income statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007 by Baht 596 million (Baht 4.90 per share) and increasing net income in
separate income statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 by Baht 241.6 million (Baht
2.85 per share), The cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy has been presented
under the heading of “Cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy for investments in

subsidiaries” in the separate statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

Such change in accounting policy affects only the accounts related to investments in subsidiaries
in the Company’s separate financial statcments, with no effect fo the consolidated financial

statements,
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
51 Revenue recognition

(a) Revenue from hotel operations

- Revenue from hotel operations mainly comprises room sales, food and beverage
sales and revenue from auxiliary activities, and represents the invoiced value
(excluding value added tax) of goods supplied and services rendered afier

deducting discounts and service charges.

- Revenue from sales of merchandise {Gallery operation) represents the invoiced

value (excluding value-added tax) of goods supplied after deducting discounts.
(b) Revenue from propetty development operations
- Revenue from the sale of Jand and houses

Revenue from the sale of land and houses are recognised when a legally binding
contract is signed and by applying the percentage of completion method. The
percentage of completion is arrived at based on actual costs incurred as compared
to the total anticipated construction costs, excluding cost of land, and based upon
estimations performed by qualified engineers, Revenue is recognised when the
initial payment and installments received are at least twenfy percent of the

contract price and the construction work is at least ten percent completed.




5.2

Where properties are sold to non-Thais, the land is sold under a long-term lease
agreement comprising an initial term of thirty years with an option to exiend for
two successive periods of thirty years cach, without any additional consideration
to be paid in addition to the sum of the rental paid for the inifial lease term. These
long-term lease agreements also contain a further option that provides if Thai law
permits non-Thais fo own land on a frechold basis, the lessor shall consent to sell
the land to the lessee in return for a token payment, Consequently, long-term
leases are recognised as sales of land for accounting purposes in accordance with

the principle of applying substance over form.

Revenue from the sale of land is recognised when the ownership has been

transferred to buyers or all payments are received from the buyers.
- Revenue from sales of furniture

Revenue from sales of furniture is recognised when furniture is completely

- installed,
- Revenue from sale of holiday club memberships

Revenue from the sale of holiday club memberships is recognised when a legally
binding contract has been signed and at least twenty-five percent of the contract

price has been received,
(¢) Revenues from rental and services

Rental income is recognised over the lease period. Service revenue is recognised

when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of completion,

(d} Interestincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Cost of land and houses sold

In determining the cost of land and houses sold, the anticipated tofal development cost
(after recognising the cost incurred to date) are atributed to units already sold and then
recognised as cost in the income statements according to the percentage of completion

basis.
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5.6

5.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, cash at bank, and all highly liquid

investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.
Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubiful
accounts is provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of
receivables, The allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis of

debtor aging.
Property development cost

Property development cost is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

comprises cost of land, design fee, infrastructure, construction and related interest.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being determined

on either the first-in, first-ouf or the weighted average basis.

Allowance for diminution in inventory value is set up for old, obsolete, slow-moving or

deteriorated inventories.

Investments

(a) Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in the separate financial statements

using the cost method.

(b) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements

using the equity method.
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5.9

Other long-term investments

Long-lerm investments in marketable equity securities which the Company and subsidiaries
intend to hold as available-for-sale are determined at fair value. The fair value is based on the
latest bid price of the last working day of the year as quoted on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand. Changes in the value of invesfments are recognised as a separate item in
shareholders’ equity under the caption of “Unrealised gain/loss on available-for-sale

securities” until the investments are sold, when the changes are then included in determining

income,

Long-term investments in non-marketable equity securitics, which the Company and
subsidiaries classified as other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for loss on

diminution in value (if any).

For long-term investments in both marketable and non-marketable equity or debt securities,
a test for impairment is carried out when there is a factor indicating that such investments

might be impaired. Loss on impairment (if any) is recognised in the income statements.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount is charged or credited to the income statement.

When disposing of part of a particular investment in debt or equity securities, the carrying
amount of the disposed part is determined as the weighted average carrying amount of the

total holding of the investment.
Property, plant and egquipment
(a) Operating properties

Operating properties which consist of land, buildings, fixtures and equipment of
buildings are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any), The Company and subsidiaries
initially recorded land, buildings, fixtures and equipment of buildings at cost at the
acquisition date, and are subsequently revalued by an independent professional
appraiser to their fair values. As a policy, the revaluation will be performed every
three years. If within that period, there are factors whick may cause significant

changes in the value of assets, the revaludtion will be performed in that year,




(b) Other fixed assets/land awaiting development

Assets other than operating properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Differences arising from the revalvation are dealt with in the financial statements as

follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a res_ult of the revaluation of the
Company and subsidiaries® assets, the increase is credited directly to equity under the
heading of “Revaluation surplus”. The Company’s proportional interest in the surplus
from revaluation of the fixed assets of the subsidiaries (based on the Company’s
equity holding in the subsidiaries) is also presented under the caption of “Revaluation
surplus” in shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet. However, a revaluation increase
will be recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of

the same asset previously recognised as an expense,

- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of the revaluation of the
Company and subsidiaries’ assets, the decrease is recognised as an expense in the
income statement, However, a revaluation decrease is to be charged directly against
the related “Revaluation surplus™ to the extent that the decrease does not exceed the
amount held in the revaluation surplus in respect of those same assets. Any excess

amount is o be recognised as an expense in the income statement,

5.10 Depreciation

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs or the revalued

amounts on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10-50 years
Fuiniture, fixtures and equipment 5-15 years
. Operating and office equipment 3-10 vyears
Golf course l 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 vyears

..]_0-
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5.13

The depreciation is dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- Depreciation attributed to the original cost portion is included in determining

income.

- Depreciation attributed to the surplus portion is deducted against revaluation surplus

in shareholders’ equity.

The revaluation surplus can neither be offset against a deficit nor used for dividend

payment.
No depreciation has been provided for land and construction in process.
Leaschold ¥ights and amortisation

Leaschold rights are stated at cost Iéss accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses
(if any). Amortisation of leasehold rights is calculated by reference to their cost on a

straight-line basis over the following leasehold periods:

Land 40 years
Hotel units 20 years

The leasehold period is in line with the underlying lease of the respective assets,
The amortisation is included in determining income.
Goodwill and negative goodwill

Goodwill is generated as a result of investments in subsidiaries being made at a cost higher

than the fair value of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries.

Negative goodwill is generated as a result of investments in subsidiaries being made at a

cost lower than the fair value of identifiable net assets of subsidiaries.

Goodwill and negative goodwill are stated at cost less amortization and allowance for loss
on impairment (if any). Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over 20 years for

hotel operation acquisitions.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the
Company, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common conirol with the

Company.
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5.14

5.15

5.16

517

5.18

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a
voting interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key
management personnel, directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction

of the Company’s operations.
Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the
transaction dates, Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the
balance sheet date are translated into Baht at the exchange rates ruling on the balance sheet

date.
Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. An asset’s recoverable amount

is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Employee benefits

Salary, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund and provident fund are

recognised as expenses when incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
Income tax

Income tax is provided for in the accounts based on the taxable profits determined in

accordance with tax legislation,
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5.19 Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are franslated into Baht
at the rates of exchange ruling on the balance sheet. Gains and losses from the translation

are included in determining income.
5.20 Use of accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain
circumstances, affecting amounts reported in these financial statements and related notes.

Actual results could differ from these estimates.
6. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

(Gnit: Baht)

Censolidated financial statements ~ Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations 774,457,008 526,160,949 82,574,250 68,782,902
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {11,335,313) (11,440,368)  (1,883,828) (1,883,828)

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations, net 763,121,695 514,720,581 80,690,422 66,899,074

Trade accounts receivable - sales of property

- Installments due 113,947,076 182,341,577 54,554,725 -

- Unbilied receivable (not yet due) 780,615,222 331,130,236 448,293,052 -
Current portion of long-term trade .

aceounts receivable (Mote 11) 203,221,017 92,304,591 - -
Total 1,097,783,315 605,776,404 502,847,771 -

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {4,000,000) - -
Trade accounts receivable - sales of property, net  1,097,783,315 601,776,404 502,847,777 -
Trade accounts receivable - net 1,860,905,010 1,116,496,985 583,538,199 66,899,074
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The outstanding balance of trade accounts receivable - hotel operations as at 31 December 2007

and 2006 are aged, based on due date, as follows:

Age of recejvables
Not yet due

Past due
Up to 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
Over 120 days
Total
Less; Allowance for doubtful debts

Trade accounts receivable - hotel operations, net

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
512,590,587 290,224,726 24,795,359 17,517,527
157,686,601 154,875,442 38,204,783 35,337,578

58,450,557 53,845,568 14,135,226 12,294,677
17,120,014 11,098,151 2,089,515 1,378,516
10,735,45¢ 4,350,723 716,116 436,267
17,873,790 11,765,339 2,633,251 1,818,337

- 774,457,008 526,160,249 82,574,250 68,782,902
(11,335,313) (11,440,368) (1,883,828) {1,883,328)
763,121,695 514,720,581 80,690,422 66,899,074

The outstanding balance of installment due of trade accounts receivable - sales of property as at
31 December 2007 and 2006 are aged, based on due date, as follows:

Age of receivables
Past due
Up to 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
Over 120 days
Total
Less: Allowance for doubtiul debts
Trade accounts receivable - sales of property

- installment due, nat

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statemenis

2007 2006 2007 2006

© 90,976,782 148,724,976 46,106,316 -
15,565,485 15,764,380 3,596,693 -
7,217,208 964,042 4,817,391 -

- 117,027 - -

187,601 16,571,152 34,325 -
113,947,076 182,341,577 54,554,725 .
. (4,000,000 - -
113,947,076 178,341,577 54,554,725 -
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Additional information on {rade accounts receivable - sales of property are as follows:

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
Total estimated project value 6,620,548,006 4,675,797,508 1,905,641,563 449,820,000
Total value of contracts signed 5,581,583,466  3,693,944,398 1,229,966,263 $1,600,000
Percentage of total project sales 84% 9% 65% 11%
Instalfments due 3,963,375,934 2,731,690,090 514,611,469 3,870,000
Less: Collections (3,849,428,858)  (2,549,348,513) (460,056,744) (3,870,000}
Accounts receivable ~ installments due 113,947,076 182,341,577 54,554,725 -
Revemies recognised 5,080,775,168 3,187,074,114 962,904,521 3,870,000
Less: Installments due (3,963,375,934)  {(2,731,6590,090) (514,611,469} (3,870,000)
Long-term trade accounts receivable -

installment receivable (Note 11) (336,784,012) (124,253,788} - -

Unbilled receivable (not yet dug) 780,615,222 331,130,236 448,293,052 -

Unbilled receivable (not yet due) represents payments which have not yet been received from

customers, but which are recognised as income under the percentage of completion method,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business {ransactions with

related parties, which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in the

ordinary course of business between the Company, its subsidiaries and related parties. Below is a

summary of those transactions. Significant transactions are disclosed separately and non-

significant {ransactions have been grouped.
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Transactions between the Group (the Compzany and its subsidiaries) and related parties

(Unit; Million Baht)

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing Policy
Reimbursement of costs BTG{T) BTRS(T) - 27 - (2) agreed basis
BTH LRH 373 20:9 (2) agreed basis
BTHR LBTL 44,7 365 {2) agreed basis
BTHR TWPL 18.8 15.6 (2) agreed basis
BTRS(T) BTG(T) 3.1 1.3 (2) agreed basis
BTRS(T) TWPL 2.1 2.4 (2) agreed basis
LBTL BTH 29.5 - (2) agreed basis
LBTL BTHR ‘12.9 59 {2) agreed basis
LBTL BTRS 1.5 0.3 (2) agreed basis
LBTL BTRS(T) 8.8 8.8 (2) agreed basis
LRH BTH 0.4 1.4 (2) agreed basis
LRH BTHR 5.7 2.1 (2) agreed basis
LRH BTR 2.6 2,2 (2} agreed basis
LRH BTRS(T) 1.0 1.1 (2) agreed basis
PTBH AVCI 15.8 7.9 (2) agreed basis
TWPL BTHR 17.4 14.6 (2) agrecd basis
TWPL BTRS(T) 7.1 9.0 (2) agreed basis
TWEL LBTH 1.3 0.5 {2) agreed basis
TWFL TWFP 1.3 0.9 {2) agreed basis
TWPL ysc 1.5 0.4 {2) agreed basis
Others 8.7 6.8 {2) agreed basis
Inter resort charges BTRS(T) BGL 26.7 23.6 {3) agreed basis
BTRS(T) LBC 10.0 8.9 {3) agreed basis
BTRS(T) LBTL 60.9 54.6 (3) agreed basis
BTRS(T) LHC 1.9 0.3 (3) agreed basis
BTRS(T} LRH 13.1 12.6 (3) agreed basis
BTRS(T) TWPL 250 28.2 (3) agreed basis
Credit card commission TWPL BTRS(T) 1.0 0.5 {4) agreed basis
QOthers 0.9 0.3 {4) agreed basis
Commission on spa guests LBC BTRS(T) 0.9 0.8 (5) agreed basis
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Commission on consignment

seles
Resort service charges

Management fees

Rent and service

Purchase of goods

{Unit: Million Baht}

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing Policy
Others 34 37 (18) agreed basis
LsC BTRS(T) 6.5 52 {6) agreed basis
BTHR TBTL 87.8 80.2 (8)(D), (iv} agreement
BTHR LGL 4.8 3.8 (8)(ii) agreement
BTHR TWPL 719 73.6 (8)(iii), (iv) agreement
Others 0.3 0.6 (7) agreements
BGL BTRS(T) 2.2 1.7 (10)(i) agreement
BTP BTG(S) - 40 (10}(xi) agreement
BTRS(T) TWPL 0.3 1.2 (10)(ix) agresment
LBTL BTRS(T) 7.0 6.6 (10)(i) agreement
LRH BTRS(T) 1.5 1.4 (10) (i)- agrecent
TWPL BTRS(D) 6.0 6.8 {10)(i),(i3) agreement
TWPL TDC 2.0 1.8 {10)(ii) agreement
TWEL TWFP 56 4.4 (1O)(ii) agreement
TWPL UsC 7.9 0.4 (10)(ii) agreement
UsC LRH - 2.6 {10)(ii) agreement
Others 1.1 2.3 (10) agreement
BTG(8) BTRS 6.6 14.9 {9)(iii} agreed basis
BTG(5) BTRS(T) 1.3 1.2 (9)(1), (iii) agreed basis
BTG(S) HSE 1.1 - (9)(iii) agreed basis
BTG(S) LBTH 10.4 - (9)(iii} agreed basis
BTG(S) MA 45 2.4 (9)(iii) agreed basis
BTG(S) MB 7.4 - {9)(iii} agreed basis
BTG(S) PTBH 4.1 9.0 (9)(il1) agreed basis
BTG(S) RSP 1.4 0.1 {9)(iii) agreed basis
BTG(S) VM 53 5.8 (9)(iii) agreed basis
BTG(T) BTRS(T) 3.3 6.6 (9(3), (iii) agreed basis
BTG(T) HSD - 42 (9)(i) agreed basis
BTG(T) HSE - 1.3 {9)(i) agreed basis
BTG(T) JRR - 32 {9)(i) agreed basis
BTG(T) LBTH - 3.1 (9)(3) agreed basis
Others 2.8 1.5 (9)(3), (iii) agreed basis
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Purchase of gallery vouchers

Purchase of spa vouchers

Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of office space
Purchase of hotel units
Purchase of property
Sale of property

Sale of hotel unils

Sales of investment

Rental return on hotel units

Termination of leasehold rights
of hotel units

Spa service

Interest

(Unit; Million Baht)

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing policy
BTG(S) BTHR 16 1.7 (13) agreed basis
BTG(T) BTRS(T) 1.5 1.4 (13) agreed basis

Others 23 37 (13) agreed basis

BTS LRH 1.7 1.4 (13) agreed basis

Others 1.6 1.4 {13) agreed basis

Others - 1.4 At net book value

Usc TWPL - 150.0 At market price

PTBH AVCI 14.8 41.2 (22) apreed basis

HLF "LHC 33.1 - At market price

LBTL KATP 312 - (20) agreement

LGL KAT 333 - (20) agreement

LRH CSN 275 - At market price

LRH HLF 1111 - At market price

LRH KPH 27.5 - At market price

LRH - MRA 103 - At market price
TWRH SDR 198 - {20) agreement

LHC KR - 13.0 (22) agreed basis

LBTL LBTH 102,7 - At premium over net

book value

CGL PTBH 5.6 8.6 (11) agreement

CGL KR 4.6 29.0 (22) apreed basis

BTRS(T) LHC 1.2 0.8 (17) agreed basis

LBTL LBTH 18.8 7.0 (16) agreement
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Transactions within the Group -

consolidated financial statements)

the Company and subsidiayies (eliminated from

(Unit; Millicn Baht)

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transter Pricing policy
Interest BGL LGL 53.9 42.0 (1) agreement
BTD LGL 2.6 6.5 (1) agreement
LBTL AVCI 2.8 - (1) agreement
LBTL TWRH - 14 (1) agreement
LGL LRH 49,3 65.3 (1) agreemnent
LHC CGL 4.0 5.9 (1) agrecment
LHC LRH 14 8.1 (1) agreement
LRH LBTL 20.7 - (1) agreement
LRH LSC - 0.3 (1) agreement
LRH TWRH 60.5 48.2 (1) agreement
MCP TWRH 3l 2.8 (1) agreement
PSD TWRH 102 17.6 (1) agreement
TWDC PSD 7.9 149 (1) agreement
TWRH LBTL 0.2 2.7 (1) apreement
TWRH TWPL 512 68.8 (1) agreement
TWT TWPL 1.7 1.7 (1) agreement
Others 1.5 2.1 (1) agreement
Reimbursement of costs AVCI LuC 4.8 34 (2) agreed basis
BGL LHC 52 4.6 {2) agreed basis
BGL LRH 13 4.5 {2) agreed basis
BGL LSC 1.0 0.9 (2) agreed basis
BTG(T) BTG(S) 1.1 - (2) agreed basis
LBC LRH 1.1 3.1 (2) agreed basis
LBC LSC 1.0 0.4 (2) agreed basis
LBTL BTG (T) 1.2 1.0 (2) agreed basis
LBTL LGL 4.6 4.4 (2) agreed basis
LBTL LHC 1.2 0.4 (2) agreed basis
LBTL LRH 2.5 1.8 (2) raresd basis
LBTL LSC 2.1 1.8 (2) agreed basis
LBTL TWPL 14.7 0.5 {2) agreed basis
LEL LHC 2.8 - (2) egreed basis
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Reimbursement of costs

Inter resort charges

(Unit; Million Baht)

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing policy
LGL LBTL 6.0 3.0 (2) agreed basis
LGL LsC 1.1 0.3 (2) agreed basis
LEC AVCI 2.1 0.8 (2) agreed basis
LHC LBTL 7.5 0.2 (2) agreed basis
LHC LGL 1.9 - (2) agreed basis
LRH BGL 221 4.6 (2) agreed basis
LRH LBC 134 2.3 (2) agreed basis
LRH LBTL 272 43 (2) agreed basis
LRH LGL 1.3 1.2 {2) agreed basis
LRH LHC 6.9 4.9 (2) agreed basis
LRH LSC 39 4.1 {2) agreed basis
TWDC LGL 2.1 - (2) agreed basis
TWPL BTG(T) 1.5 09 (2) agreed basis
TWPL LBTL 2.5 33 (2) agreed basis
TWPL LGL 1.6 0.4 (2) agreed basis
TWPL LHC 47 4.2 (2) agreed basis
TWPL LRH 13.8 9.2 (2) agreed basis
TWRH PKRD 1.4 - (2) agreed basis
Others ' 12.2 5.1 (2) agreed basis
BGL LBC 1.9 2.9 (3) agreed basis
BGL LBTL 4.5 43 (3) agreed basis
BGL LHC 1.4 0.2 (3) agreed basis
BGL LRH 2.4 2.6 (3) agreed basis
BTG(T) BGL 1.8 L7 (3) agreed basis
BTG(T) LBC 1.3 1.1 (3) agreed basis
BTG(T) LBTL 10.5 9.2 (3) agreed basis
BTG(T) LGL 93 2.4 (3) agreed basis
BTG(T) TWPL 3.5 32 (3) agreed basis
LBC BGL 1.7 1.7 (3) agreed basis
LBC LBTL 0.9 1.0 (3) agreed basis
LBC LRH 1.3 0.9 (3) agreed basis
LBTL BGL 6.3 5.8 (3) agreed basis
LBTL LBC 1.0 2.0 (3) agreed basis
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Inter resort charges

Credit card commission

Commission on property sales

Resort service charges

Management fees

(Unit: Million Baht)

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing policy
LBTL LHC 11.4 1.1 (3) agreed basis
LBTL LRH 2.4 2.6 (3} agreed basis

LEL BGL 29.7 - (3) agreed basis

LEL LBC 13,8 - (3) agreed basis

LEL LBTL 222 - (3) agreed basis

LEL LHC 2.9 - (3) agreed basis

LEL LRH 13.4 - (3) agreed basis
LGL BGL 73 8.1 (3) agreed basis
LGL LBC 1.9 3.6 (3) agreed basis
LGL LBTL 1.8 9.9 (3) agreed basis
LGL LHC 1.8 6.6 (3) agreed basis
LGL LRH 2.9 5.3 (3) agreed basis
1RH BGL 4,7 42 (3) agreed basis
LRH LBC 33 - 2.8 (3) agreed basis
LRH LBTL 35 2.5 (3) agreed basis
Others L1 0.6 (3) agreed basis
Others 2.5 1.0 (4) agreed basis
BGL LBTL 1.3 - (21} agreed basis
Others 2.7 - (21) agreed basis
LSC BGIL 52,6 48.5 (6) agreed basis

LSC LBC 25.8 25.1 {6) agreed basis

1sC LBTL 46,0 37.8 {6) agreed basis

LsC LEL 1.7 - (6) agreed basis

LsC LGL 8.0 7.9 (6}, (23) agreed basis
LsC LHC 14.1 55 (6), (23) agreed basis
LSC LRHE 34.6 i1.4 (6) agreed basis

LSC TWDC 2.5 1.5 (6), (23) agreed basis
LSC TWPL 1.8 0.2 (6), (23) agreed basis
Others 0.7 0.5 (6} agreed basis
LRH BGL - 4.5 (7) agreement

LRH LBTL 1.7 83 (7) agreement

LRH LHC 72 11.0 (7) agreement

LRH TWPL 11.3 7.3 (7) agreement
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Rent and service

Guarantee fee

Purchase of goods

{(Unit: Million Baht)

- 22 -

Payee Payer 2007 2008 Transfer Pricing policy
BGL TWPL 1.3 - {10)(xiii} agreement
BTD BGL 3.9 3.7 {10)(v) agreement
BTD LBTL 7.5 7.1 (10)(v) agreement
BTD LGL 2.2 2.1 (10){vi) agreement
L1 LBC 2.8 2.7 (10)(v) agreement
L3 LBTL 1.9 1.8 (10)(v) agreement
LBC BTG(T) 1.4 1.4 (10)(viii) agreement
LBTL BTG({T) 1.6 1.4 (10)(i) agreement
LGL LBTL 6.3 57 (10X(i), (v) agreement
LRH LGL 16 2.0 (10)(iii} agreement
LRH LHC 49 47 (10)(iii} agreement
LsC BGL 0.8 12 (10)(iv), (xii) agreement
PKRD LRH 1.1 1.0 (10)(v) agreement
TWPL BTG(T) 2.1 0.4 (10)(i), (ii) agreement
TWPL LHC 2.2 2.4 (10)(i} agreement
TWPL LRH 12.2 7.1 (10)(ii} agreement
TWT TWPL 5.0 50 (10)(vii) agreement
TWT2 TWPL 2.6 2.6 (10)(x) agreement
Other 9.9 7.6 (10) agreement
BGL LRH 0.6 29 {15) agreed basis
BTt LRH 1.3 1.3 (15) agreed basis
BT2 LRH 09 0.9 (15) agreed basis
BTD LBTL 1.9 2.5 {15) agreed basis
BTD LRH 3.0 4.7 (15) agreed basis
L3 LRH 1.1 1.1 {15) agreed basis
LBTL LRH 17 1.9 {15) agreed basis
LGL LBTL 1.9 22 {15) agreed basis
LGL LRH 2.5 a7 {15) agreed basis
LRH LBTL 6.6 7.4 (15) agreed basis
PKRD LRH 1.3 0.6 {15) agreed basis
TWT TWPL 2.6 1.9 {15) agreed basis
Other 3.5 3.8 (15) agreed basis
BTG(S) BTG(T) 1.5 7.3 {9)(i1) agreed basis
BTG(T) BTG(S) 4,9 16.3 (9)(31) agreed basis




Purchase of goods

Purchase of land

Purchase of gallery vouchers

Purchase of water
Golf course service

Dividend income

{Unit; Million Baht}

Payee Payer 2007 2006 Transfer Pricing policy
RTG(T) LBTL 24.2 16.4 (9)(), (iii) agreed basis
BTG(T} LHC 2.7 2.2 (9)(1), (iii) agreed basis
BTG(T) LRH [.2 03 At retail price
BTG(T) -~ TWPL 102 6.7 (9)(1), (iii) agreed basis
Other 1.1 0.6 (9)(1), (ili) agreed basis
LGL LHC - 8.6 (14) Land Purchase Agreement
LGL LRH - 13.5 (14) Land Purchase Agreement
LGL TWPL 8.1 - (14) Land Purchase Agreement
LGL TWRH - 27.6 (14) Land Purchase Agreement
Other - 0.8 (14) Land Purchase Agreement
BTG(T) LHC 1.6 0.9 (13) agreed basis ’
BTG(T) LRH 10.5 1.6 (13) agreed basis
Other 2.8 28 (13) agreed basis
LGL LSsC 2.8 2.6 (12) agreed basis
LGL LEL 6.1 - {19) agreed basis
LGL BT1 4.5 - As declared
LGL BT2 4.6 - Ag declared
LGL BT3 5.0 - As declared
LGL BT4 6.0 - Ag declared
LGL BTD 380 60.0 As declared
LHC LGL 18.4 8L.1 As declared
LRH L3 - 2.5 As declared
LRH LBC 8.3 67 As declared
1RH LBTL - 102,9 As declared
LRH LGL 174.0 765.6 As declared
LRH LHC 100.0 396.0 As declared
LRH TWRH - 150.0 As declared
MCP LGL 76 333 As declared
TWRH LBC 417 333 Ag declared
TWRH LBTL - 107.1 As declared
TWRH LEL 24 - As declared

TWT TWT2 2.0 - As declared
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LRH

Subsidiaries
AVCI
BGL

BT1

BT2

BT3

BT4

BTD :
BTG(S) :
BTG(T) :
CGL

L1

L3

LBC
LBTL
LEL

LGL

LHC

LSC

MCP
PKRD
PSD
TWDC
TWPL
TWRH
TWT
TWT2

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited

PT. AVC Indonesia

Bangtao Grande Limited

Bangtao (1} Limited

Bangtao (2) Limited

Bangtao (3} Limited

Bangtao (4) Limited

Bangtao Development Limited

Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Pte Ltd,
Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) Limited
Cheer Golden Limited

Laguna (1) Limited

Laguna (3) Limited

Laguna Beach Club Limited

Laguna Banyan Tree Limited

Laguna Excursions Limited

Laguna Grande Limited

Laguna Holiday Club Limited

Laguna Service Company Limited

Mae Chan Property Company Limited
Phuket Resort Development Limited

Pai Samart Development Company Limited
Twin Waters Developiment Company Limited
Thai Wah Plaza Limited

TWR - Holdings Limited

Thai Wah Tower Company Limited

Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited

Associated company

LBTH*

*] BTH’s status has been changed from a subsidiary in the prior year to an associated company
since 1 January 2007. The transactions of 2006 and 2007 between LBTH and companies within

the Group were grouped in “Transactions between the Group and related companies” for

Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Company Limited

comparison purposes,
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Related companies {related by way of common shareholders, directors and/or management)
BTH :  Banyan Tree Holdings Limited
BTHR : Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts Pte. Ltd.

BTP . Banyan Tree Properties Pte. Ltd,

BTR :  Banyan Tree Resorts Limited

BTRS : Banyan Tree Resotts (Seychelles) Limited

BTRS(T): Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas (Thailand) Company Limited
BTS 1 Banyan Tree Spas Pte, Ltd.

HSD :  Heritage Spas Dubai LLC

HSE :  Heritage Spas Egypt LLC

JRR :  Jiwa Renga Resorts Limited

KAP :  KAP Holdings Ltd.

KR :  Kingley Realty Limited

MA :  Maldives Angsana Pvt. Ltd

MB : Maldives Bay Pvt. Ltd

PTBH : PT Bintan Hotels

RSP :  Reef Services Pty. Ltd

TDC . Tapioca Development Corporation Limited

TWEP : Thai Wah Food Products Public Company Limited

uscC :  Universal Starch Public Company Limited (Previously named “Thai Wah Public

~ Company Limited”)
VM :  Vabbinvest Maldives Pvt. Ltd

Related persons (directors, management, or their immediate family members)
CSN :  Ms, Chiang See Ngoh

HLF :  Ms. Ho Lien Fung
KPH :  Mr. Ho KwonPing
MRA : Mr. Michael R. Ayling
SDR : M. Stuart D, Reading
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The nature, pricing and agreements relating to the above transactions are summarised as follows:

(1)

)

3)

4

(5

Loans to subsidiaries and between group companies are unsecured and are denominated in
Thai Baht, except for loans to LBTH which are denominated in US dollars as in (16) below.

The Baht loans catry interest at a rate equal to the lenders’ borrowing costs per annum

- (based upon commercial bank’s interest rates) plus a margin of 1.1 percent. The loans are

repayable on demand, however it is expected that those loans would not be called for
repayment in the short-term. Therefore such loans are recorded as non-current

assets/liabilities in the balance sheet.

Costs are often incurred in one company within the group which is reimbursed by the
company to which the expense relates. Actual costs are reimbursed with no handling costs

applied.

These charges relate to goods and services that are consumed by customers in one patt of
Laguna Phuket but are billed centrally to the customer at the hotel at which the customer is
staying, Such charges relate to meals at restaurants, golf fees, treatments at Spa’s and goods
purchased at shops in the resort. On receiving the funds centrafly from the customer, the
hotel reimburses the company in which the goods and services are consumed. Actual
receipts are paid and handling charges are not charged with the exception of credit card
commission which is disclosed separately in (4) below. Such inter resort charges are also
incurred at the Banyan Tree Bangkok primarily for treatments of spa and goods purchased

in the shops.

As noted in (3) above these commissions relate to instances where monies are received in a
different company in which the revenue was carned. As credit card commissions are
deducted from the gross receipts of customers, this transaction passes on the cost to the
company in which the revenue is recognised. The rates charged range from 2 percent to 4
percent of the revenue and are based on the actual commissions charged by the credit card

companies.

These charges relate to commissions eamed by LBC for its guests that it provides to the
closely located Spa. This commission is paid by the Spa to incentivise LBC to market the
Spa’s facilities to ifs guests. The rates charged range from 5 percent to 10 percent of spa

revenue based on the number of guests that LBC provides to the Spa each month,
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(6) Resort service charges to the hotel operations relates to revenue of LSC which provides

centralised services to each operation in the group located at Laguna Phuket at the

following rates:
- Utility charge ¢ at the determined price and actual usage
- Laundry charge : at the price based on cost plus a certain margin

- Common area services, fransportation

charges, computer fraining

centre and staff buses : based on actual cost
- Marketing fee : at the rate of 1 percent of the hotel operations’
budgeted revenue

(7) LRH provides architectural services and manages projects that are undertaken during the
year. The confracted fee for project management is set at a rate of 5 percent of the actveal or
budgeted costs of the project and the contracted fee for architectural services are based on

construction cost at the following progressive rates,

The first 10 million Baht : 6.5 percent of construction cost
The next 10 - 30 million Baht  : 5.5 percent of construction cost
The next 30 - 50 million Baht ;4,75 percent of construction cost
The next 50 - 100 million Baht : 4.5 percent of construction cost

The next 100 - 200 million Baht :  4.25 percent of construction cost
The next 200 - 500 million Baht :  3.75 percent of construction cost
Above 500 million Baht : 3.4 percent of construction cost

(8) The terms of the operating agreements are disclosed in note 29, The payments terms of the

contracts are as follows:

()  The management contract of the Banyan Tree Phuket pays a basic management fee of
2 percent of total revenue and an incentive fee of 7.5 percent of gross operating

profit,

(i) This relates to a Technical Assistance Agreement to conduct the golf business. The
terms of the agreement set a basic management fee of 3 percent of total revenue and

an incentive fee of 10 percent of gross operating profit.
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9

(iii) The management contract of the Banyan Tree Bangkok pays a basic management fee

Gv)

of 3 percent of total revenue and an incentive fee of 10 percent of gross operating

profit.

Pursuant to the management contract, expenses relating to the sharing of promotional
campaigas and adverts, sales staff salaries, central reservations and international sales
offices incurred by the Banyan Tree corporate head office shall be charged as -

follows:

- Group marketing services shared on a group basis are based on 3 percent of the

budgeted revenues of the hotels.

- Reservation Service fees are 1 percent of room revenue plus USD 10 per

reservation transaction.

All management fees are consistent with industry practice and the sharing of group

marketing costs incurred by LBTL and TWPL are the reimbursement of costs benefiting

each of the hotels. As a result these transactions are on normal commercial terms and

conditions.

These transactions relate fo:

@

(i)

(iif)

Sale of goods from BTG(T) to other subsidiaries and related companies are priced at

a 15 percent to 45 percent discount to the retail price.

Sale of goods from BTG(T) to BTG(S) is priced at cost plus a handling fee of 5
percent, In this instance BTG(T) acts as a purchasing agent on behalf of BTG(S) in
order to centralise the purchasing function. This arrangement also applies for the sale
of goods from BTG(S) to BTG(T).

Sale of guest supplies for the hotels from BTG(S) and BTG(T) to other related

companies is priced at cost plus cerfain margin.
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(10) These transactions relate to rent paid for premises and land. The rental periods are not over

three yeats, except somie transactions as stated below:

@

)]

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Rental of hotel premises and service income is on the basis of 5 percent to 8.5 percent
of sales revenue which is dependent on criteria such as the location, budgeted sales,

term of the lease, size of area leased and type of operation.

Payeo Payer Rental Period Expiry Date

BGL BTRS(T) 30 years November 2028
IBTL BTRS(T) 10 years December 2015 -
LRH BTRS(T) 30 years March 2630
LBTL BTG(T) 5 years December 2007

Rental or rental and service income of office space with monthly rent varying from
Baht 300 to Baht 550 per square metre which is dependent on criteria such as the
location, term of the lease, and size of area leased. For storage space, rental was

charged at Baht 100 per square metre per month.

Rental of space and service in Canal Village. The rates charged range fiom Baht 332
to Baht 498 per square metre per month.

Rental of central storage was charged at Baht 300 per square metre per month.

Rental of land and lagoon on which hotel operations and Canal Village are located
are at Baht 85,000 and 8,500 per rai per annum respectively, starting from January

2005 increasing by 5 percent per annum.

Rental of land on which Laguna Phuket Golf Club is located at Baht 8,500 per rai per

annum, starting from January 2005 increasing by 5 percent per annum.

Rental of office building vnits is on the basis of Baht 5 million per annum. The rental

period is 8 years, ended December 2012.

(viil) Rental on hotel premises is on the basis of Baht 937 per square mefre per month.

(ix)

Rental and service fee for the fitness center located at the Banyan Tree Spa Bangkok
is at the rate of Baht 348 per square metre per month. For July 2006 to May 2007, the

fee was at a 50 percent discount due to renovations.
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(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(x) Rental of land on which hotel premises are located is on the basis of Baht 2.6 million

per annum, The rental period is 6 years, ended December 2010.

(xi) Rental and service fee for Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) is at the rate of 85 2.94

per square feef per month.

(xii) The air conditioning rental fee related to the use of LSC’s marquee which is on the
basis of Baht 7,600 per bay and Baht 2,000 per hour.

(xiti) Temporary use of a hotel villa as a show house for property sales during May to
November 2007 with the monthly charge varying from Baht 150,000 to Baht 250,000

dependent on the demand of the hotel’s villa in each period.

This relates to a Management Agreement to manage the hotel units of CGL in the Angsana
Resort & Spa on Bintan Island, Indonesia under which CGL receives a return of 15 percent

per annum on the investment of the leasehold rights.

LSC purchases water from LGL, the Company that owns the lagoons from which the water

is sourced, at a rate of Baht 2 per cubic metre.

Putchase of Banyan Tree Spa and Banyan Tree Gallery vouchers for distribution to
management to provide an additional benefit scheme. The vouchers will be issued yearly to

qualifying executives and will be valid only within the year of issve.

The sale and purchase of land in Chiangmai and Phuket was made among 100 percent

owned subsidiaries and was set at a level based on the official Land Department valuation,

Guarantee fee among group companies for permifting their assets to be pledged as
collateral for other related companies’ bank loans by charging on 1 percent of proportion of

value of pledged assets to total loan facilities.

Loans have been provided to LBTH to fund the construction of the Banyan Tree Lijiang
Hotel which are denominated in US dollars. The loans are long-term loans which carry
interest at rates of 6 percent and 7.25 percent per annum and are repayable within 24

months and 8§ years after the first drawdown respectively.

(17) This relates to the purchase of Spa vouchers by LHC from BTRS(T) which are priced at a

40 percent discount to the Spa price list.
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(18)

(19)

(20)

Sale of goods from BTG(S) to other related companies which are entitled to a monthly
commission of 5 percent of the monthly aggregate of all revenues and income derived

directly from the sale of goods consigned by BTG(S) to be sold at the outlets.

This relates to the purchase of golf vouchers by LEL to sell to its customers for golf course
service, The vouchers are priced at an 8 percent discount to the golf course’s price list

before relevant taxes and service charges.

Sale of property to employees of LRH Group based on the market price less applicable
discount under staff housing discount policy which is based upon length of service up to a

maximum of 10 percent. The sale transactions presented are revenue recognised in the year,

(21) These commissions are paid by property sales companies to incentivise the hotels fo

(22)

(23)

introduce their guests and facilitate by providing facilities and area in order to promote the
sale of property. The commission is at the rate of 2 percent to 2.5 percent of the total sale

price of the property. The term is from Janwary 2007 to December 2008,

These transactions relate to the restructuring of ownership of units held by the Group in the
Angsana Resort & Spa Bintan, Indonesia. The units were originally purchased by CGL and
LHC. However, due to the commencement of Laguna Holiday Club’s Bintan operations,
the ownership of the units was transferred to AVCI who is performing the local operations.

The prices are based on market price.

Eslate maintenance and service charges by LSC to the project developers in respect of

providing ceniralized services to residential projects in Laguna Phuket are at the following

rates:

- Water charge . at the determined price and actual usage

- Ground and landscape maintenance  :  a fixed monthly charge

- Engineering service :  afixed monthly charge

- Estate service management :  afixed monthly charge

- Other ad hoc services :  actual cost for material used plus a labor

cost of Baht 300 per person per hour
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The Company has contingent labilities in respect of leiters of gnarantee issued to banks to

guarantee facilities of its subsidiaries as follows:

(Unit; Million Baht)

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
780.0
1057

Long-term loan facilities 780.0
Overdrafts and bank guarantec facilitics 105.7
Forward exchange contract 177.6

177.6

Subsidiaries have contingent liabilities in respect of letters of guarantee issued to banks to

guarantee facilities of the Company and other subsidiaries as follows:

31 Decerber 2007

Long-term loan facilities 1,170.0
Short-term loan facilities 170.0
Overdrafts and bank guarantee facilitics 10.0
Forward exchange confract 1000

(Unit: Million Baht)

31 December 2006

1,220.0
170.0
16.0
107.5

The significant outstanding balances owing from/to its related companies have been separately

shown in the balance sheets as follows:

Amounts due from related companies

Subsidiaries
Laguna Grande Limited
Laguna Service Company Limited
Bangtao Grande Limited
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited
Laguna Beach Club Limited
Laguna Holiday Club Limited
TWR-Holdings Limited
‘Thai Wah Tower (2) Company Limited
Phuket Resort Development Limited
Others

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
- - 985,087 956,266
- - 564,374 374,448
- - 6,037,862 2,554,804
- . 25,268,453 1,769,678
- . 7,961,745 2,043,791
. . 4,086,308 5,292,347
. - 4,224 403 7,756,981
. . . 7,039,099
- - 573,407 -
. - 714,721 627,325
- . 50,416,360 28,414,739
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Associated company
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Ltd,
Related companies
Banyan Tree Resorts & Spas
{Thailand) Company Limited

Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorts Pte, Ltd.

Banyan Tree Holdings Limited

Banyan Tree (Private) Limited

Banyan Tree Spa Japan Yugen Kaisha

Banyan Tree Spas Morocco

Banyan Tree Spas Pte, Ltd,

Banyan Tree Resorts (Seychelles)
Limited

Banyan Tree Resorts Limited

Banyan Tree Resorts (Australia) Pty
Limited

Maldives Bay Pvt. Lid.

Maldives Angsana Pvt, Ltd,

PT Bintan Hotels

Vabbinvest Maldives Pvt. Ltd.

Jiwa Renga Resorts Limited

Heritage Spas Dubai LLC

Others

Total

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
33,179,546 179,527 .
5,290,344 2,169,340 - -
7,772,591 2,362,913 5,160,863 381,456
29,656,475 37,933 238,081 .
3,596,599 4,002,593 . .

- 670,641 - -
193,056 - 193,056 -
1,097,615 790,603 . .
8,087,660 5,940,868 15,460 36,722
742,161 1,092,209 620,843 1,092,299
2,606,319 111,207 - -
1,732,796 - 137,365 -
626,728 261,911 . -
5,907,020 6,427,943 36,888 -
2,042,846 1,588,537 14,306 45,998
4,409,369 3,569,137 20,600 -
1,145,837 4,034,006 - -
773,899 196,742 4,522 33,715
75,681,315 33,256,763 6,441,993 1,590,190
108,860,861 33,256,763 57,037,880 30,004,929
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Long-term Joans to subsidiaries
The movements of long-term loans to subsidiaries were as follows:

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2006 Addition Repayment 31 December 2007
Laguna (3) Limited 4,500,000 - (3,000,000) 1,500,000
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited . 845,000,000 (292,000,000) 553,000,000
Laguna Holiday Club Limited - 41,400,000 (12,000,000) 29,400,000
TWR-Holdings Limited 1,132,500,000 786,000,000 {1,021,800,000) 896,700,000
Total 1,137,000,000  1,672,400,000 (1,328,200,000) 1,480,600,000

Long-term loan to associated company

As at 31 December 2007, the long-term loan to associated company was a loan that Laguna
Banyan Tree Limited provided to Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Ltd. (LBTH). When the
divestment of the group’s 20.96 percent equity interest became effective on 1 January 2007,
LBTH’s status changed from a subsidiary to an associated company, and the loan is presented as
“long-term loan to associated company™ in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December

2007. The movements in long-term loan to associated company during the period are as follows:

(Unit: Baht)
Consclidated financial statements
Exchange rate
31 December 2006 Addition adjustment 31 December 2007
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Litd. 178,698,835% 139,118,049 (19,109,211) 298,707,673

(* As at 31 December 2006, the loan was a loan to a subsidiary which was climinated and was not presented in the

consolidated financlal statenients.)
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Long-term loan to employees

(Unit; Baht)

Employees of the companies Consolidated financial statements

31 Pecember 2006 Addition 31 December 2007

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited - 10,803,000 10,803,000
Bangtao Grande Limited - 3,008,000 3,008,000
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited - 3,384,000 3,384,000
Laguna Grande Limited - 9,120,000 9,120,000
Laguna Holiday Club Limited . - 4,626,000 4,626,000
Laguna Service Company Limited - 3,104,000 3,104,000

- 34,045,000 34,045,000

(Unit; Baht}

Employees of the company Separate financial statements

31 December 2006 Addition 31 December 2007

Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company Limited - 10,803,000 10,803,000

Long-term loans to employees are in respect of property purchased under the Group’s employee
financing scheme and are charged interest at the rate of the Group’s cost of funds plus a margin

of 0.5 percent. The loans are repayable within 5 years.

Amounts due to related companies

K (Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
Subsidiaries

Laguna Service Company Limited - - 5,774,164 5,899,522
Laguna Grande Limited - - 7,809,324 11,315,492
Bangtao Grande Limited - - 2,299,902 1,064,142
Lagunha Banyan Tree Limited - - 4,120,542 907,507
Thai Wah Plaza Limited - - 1,850,408 1,753,460
TWR-Holdings Limited . - - 17,255,697 4,070,700
Laguna Holiday Club Limited B - 755,646 1,210,206
Laguna Excursion Limited - - 1,629,986 -
Laguna (3) Company Limited - - 1,118,700 -
Bang Tao (1) Limited - - 1,265,700 -
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Bang Tao (2) Limited

Bang Tao (4) Limited

Bai-lg Tao Development Company Limited

Phuket Resort Developrent Company
Limited

Others

Related companles
Banyan Tree Resorls & Spa
(Thailand) Company Limited
Banyan Tree Properties Pte. Ltd.
Banyan Tree Hotels & Resorls Pte, Lid,
Banyan Tree Holdings Limited
PT Bintan Hotels
Tiwa Renga Resorts Limited

Others

Total

Long-term loans from subsidiaries

Consolidated financial

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial

statements statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
- - 910,533 -
- - 371,000 -
- - 2,966,258 .-
- - 1,256,675 -
- - 979,873 739,220
- - 50,462,408 26,960,249
11,467,120 12,535,585 1,378,535 583,51 6
- 632,194 - -
49,485,842 42,477,220 - 40213
10,139,411 37,045,012 - 10,139,411 15,507,833
- 2,903,300 - -
- 658,896 - -
362,819 443,613 239,351 48,367
71,455,192 96,693,820 11,757,297 16,180,929
71,455,192 96,695,820 62,219,705 43,141,178

Duting 2007, the movements of the long-term loans from subsidiaries were as follows:

{Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2006 Addition Repayment 31 December 2007
Laguna Grande Limited 548,250,000 927,600,000 (435,500,000) 1,040,350,000
Laguna Holiday Club Limited 8,500,000 185,600,000 (194,100,000) -
Total 556,750,000  1,113,200,000 (629,600,600) 1,040,350,000
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Long-term loans from related company

As at 31 December 2006, the long-term loan from related company was & loan that: Banyan Tree
Holdings Limited (BTHL) provided to Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Ltd. (LBTH). When the
divestment of the group’s 20.96 percent equity interest became effective on 1 January 2007,
LBTH was no longer a subsidiary of the Company and hence the assets and liabilities of LBTH

are no longer included in the consolidated balance sheet since January 2007,

Directors and management’s remuneration

In 2007 the Company and its subsidiaries paid salaries, meeting allowances and gratuities to their
directors amounting to Baht 4.5 million and management amounting to Baht 188.3 million
totaling Baht 192.8 million (Separate financial statements: Baht 102.68 million) (2006: Baht

151.7 million, Separate financial statements; Baht 88.7 million).

INVENTORIES
(Unit; Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements stafements
2007 2006 2007 2006
Food and beverage 38,460,957 37,958,569 4,921,430 3,750,225
Finished goods and supplies 127,338,533 124,791,764 12,213,594 15,573,244

165,799,490 162,750,333 17,135,024 19,363,469

Less: Allowance for stock
obsolescence (7,695,531) (4,435,965) - -

Inventories - net 158,103,959 158,314,368 17,135,024 19,363,469

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COST
(Unit; Baht)

Consolidated financial statemends Separate financial statements
2007 2006 2007 2006
Property for sale under holiday club memberships 4 16,003,906 424,503,533 - -
Completed buildings 20,392,572 87,197,876 - -
Land 5443187 14,398,782 6,454,566 13,516,388
Property under construetion 525497870 158,731,584 215,029,424 16,123,234
967,331,535 684,831,775 221,483,990 29,639,622
Less: Altowance for diminution in market value
of property under construciion (91,417,649)  (91,417,649) . -
Property development cost - net 875,919,886 593,414,126 221,483,930 29,639,622
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11

A subsidiary has pledged land of approximately 0.6 Rai, at book value of Baht 2.9 million as

collateral against the Company’s credit facilities, received from financial institutions.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
staternents stafements

2007 2006 2007 2006
Value added tax 37,819,005 35,893,581 10,000,659 7,678,064
Prepaid expenses and withholding tax 75,183,698 51,458,594 9,028,816 10,969,514
Advance fo suppliers and staif 105,537,341 214,317,849 38,234,171 53,369,272
I.oan to subsidiaries’ shareholders 2,550,000 2,550,000 - -
Forward exchange contract 112,670,147 97,839,100 112,657,953 80,982,538
Interest receivable 4,603,307 12,287,296 1,228,702 -
Cthers 2,572,686 6,937,286 - 77,131
Total 340,936,184 421,283,706 171,150,301 162,076,519
LONG-TERM TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Long-term trade accounts receivable consists of:

11.1 Secured financing provided to customers of property sales which are mainly denominated
in United States Dollars and bear interest at a rate of 5 percent per annum over the

Singapore Inter Bank Offered Rate (SIBOR). The loan periods vary from 5 to 15 years.

11.2 Installments receivable from property sales which bear interest at a rate of @ percent and 12

percent per annum and installments are repaid over a period of 3 to 5 years,

Long-term trade accounts receivable are due as follows:
(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial staterents - 2007

Loan Installment
receivable receivable Total
Within one year (Note 6) 3,779,868 199,441,149 203,221,017
Between 2 - 4 years 6,790,422 137,342,863 144,133,285
5 years and after - - -
Long-ternt trade accounts receivable 6,790,422 137,342,863 144,133,285
Total 10,570,290 . 336,784,012 347,354,302
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Within one year (Note 6)

Between 2 - 4 years

5 years and after

Long-term trade accounts receivable

Total

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Unit; Baht)

Consolidated financial statements - 2006

Loan Installment
recejvable receivable Total
4,001,301 88,303,290 92,304,591
7,926,446 35,950,498 43,876,944
1,291,764 - 1,291,764
9,218,210 35,950,498 45,168,708
13,219,511 124,253,788 137,473,299

Separate financial statements

Sharcholding Dividend received for the
Paid-up share capital percentage Cost year ended 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006
Million Million % % Million Million Million Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
TWR - Holdings Limited 1,2500 1,250.0 100 100 1,250.0 1,250.0 g 150.0
u -
Pai Samart Development Company Limited 284 284 100 100 - - - -
Mae Chan Property Company Limited 2323 2323 100 160 - - - -
Phuket Resort Development Lintited 414 41.4 il 100 - - - -
Lapuna Banyan Tree Limited” 500.0 500.0 100 100 835.1 8351 - 1029
Laguna Beach Club Limited o 2000 200.0 60 60 850 350 8.3 67
Laguna (1) Limited 150 150 60 60 - - . -
PT AVC Indonesia UsSh 07  USDG? 100 100 - - - -
Million Millien
Talang Development Company Limited 2550 2510 50 50 - - - -
Lijiang Benyan Tree Hetel Co. Ltd - USD 49 - 70 - - - -
Million
Twin Walers Development Company Limited 2144 214.4 109 100 - - - -
‘Fhai Wah Plaza Limited 2,256.0 1,500.0 100 100 - - - -
Thai Wah Tower Company Limited 455.0 455.0 100 100 - - - -
Thal Wah Tower (2) Company Limited 21.0 210 100 100 - - - -
Laguna Excursions Limited 50 5.0 49 49 - - - -
Leguna Grande Limited 1,000.0 1,000.0 100 160 9144 9144 1740 165.6
Subsldigries eld thepugh Laguna Grande Limited
Bangtao (1) Limited 209 209 100 190 - - . -
Bangtao (2) Limited 19.1 19.1 100 100 - - - -
Bangtao (3) Limited 7.8 7.8 100 109 - - - -
Bangtao (4) Limited 14,6 14.6 100 109 - - - -
Bangtao Development Limited 800 50.0 100 100 - - - -
Laguna Central Limited 1.0 1.0 85 BS - - - -
Bangtao Grande Limited 1,546.0 1,546.0 100 100 - - - -
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Sepanate financial statements

Shareholding Dividend received for the
Paid-up share capital perceniage Cost year ended 31 December
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Million Million % % Miltion Million Mitlion Million
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Othier subsidiarfes )
Laguna Service Company Limited 90,5 90.5 89.2 89.2 224 224 - -
Banyan Tres Gallery (Thailand) Limited 7.8 18 51 51 4.0 4.0 - -
Laguna Heliday Club Limited 3300 330.0 100 100 330.0 3300 100,0 386.0
Banyan Tree Gailety (Singapore} SGD 043  SGD 043 51 5l 4.0 4.0 - -
Ple Limited Million Millien
Laguna (3) Limited 0.1 0.1 160 100 46.4 46.4 - 2.5
Cheer Golden Limited - . 100 100 - - - -
Total investments In subsidlaries 34913 34013 2823 1,423.7

(1) Laguna Banyan Trec Limited is held 40 percent by the Company and 51 percent through TWR - Holdings Limited
(2) Laguna Beach Clob Limited fs held 10 percent by the Company and SGpercent through TWR - Holdings Limited
(3) Laguna Services Company Limited is held by the Cempany and 3 subsidiaries

The Company has a 60 percent shareholding in Laguna Beach Club Limited. However, the
Company has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 50 percent in accordance

with the income sharing percentage in the Articles of Association.

The Company has a 49 percent sharcholding in Laguna Excursions Limited. However, the .

Company has recognised its share of the income of this subsidiary at 100 percent after deducting
the cumulative preferential annual dividend of 15 percent of the par value of the preference

shares, in accordance with the income sharing percentage in the Articles of Association.

As at 31 December 2006, the 2,450,000 ordinary shares of Laguna Banyan Tree Limited were

pledged with a bank to secure a long-term loan of the Company. The shares were unpledged on

2 April 2007,

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, the 10,188,203 ordinary shares of Thai Wah Plaza Limited

have been pledged with a bank to secure a long-term loan of the Company.

The Board of Directors’ meeting No. 6/2006 of Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public Company
Limited (the Company) held on 27 December 2006 approved the divestment of 20.96 percent of
ILaguna Banyan Tree Limited (LBTL)’s equity interest in Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Ltd.
(LBTH) to Banyan Tree Holdings Limited (BTHL), at the total consideration of USD
2,857,005.15 (approximately Baht 102,7 million) effective 1 January 2007 whereby the equity
interest ratio of LBTL in LBTH was decreased from 70.00 percent to 49,04 percent. As a result,
LBTH status changed from that of a subsidiary company to an associated company in January
2007. The meeting also approved the restructure of the existing LBTL’s loan, facility provided to
LBTH to the level of LBTL’s new equity interest ratio.
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Asat ] January 2007, the net asset value of LBTH was as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Current assets 245,644
Property, plant and equipment - net ‘ 839,078
Other non-current assets 30,947
Total assets 1,115,669
Current liabilities 76,131
Non-current Habilities 595,957
Total liabilities 672,088
Net asset value 443,581
Net asset value - equity atiributable to LBTL’s shareholders (20.96 percent) 92,718
Translation adjustment - equity attributable to LBTL’s shareholders
(20.96 percent) 3,830
Less: Sales proceeds . (102,725)
Gain from sale of in;.restment in subsidiary company 6,177}
Sales proceeds : 102,725
Less: Restructure of investinent to loan (102,725)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary (145,167}
Net cash decrease from sale of controlling interest in subsidiary (145,167)

On 20 June 2007, the extraordinary meeting of the shareholders of That Wah Plaza Limited (a
subsidiary) resolved to increase that company’s share capital from Baht 1,500 million (15.0
million ordinary shares of Baht 100 each) fo Baht 2,250 million (22.5 million ordinary shares of
Baht 100 each). The subsidiary registered the increase in its share capital with the Ministry of
Commerce on 31 August 2007 and the Company has fully paid the additional share capital.

- 41 -




13.

Changes in Goodwill (Negative goodwill) on consolidation balances during the year can be

sumnmarised as follows:

Cost:
As at 31 December 2006

As at 31 December 2007
Accumuiated amortisation:
As at 31 December 2005
Charge for the year

As at 31 Decemnber 2006
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2007
Net book value:

As at 31 December 2006
As at 31 December 2007

{Unit; Baht)

Negative

Goodwill Goodwill Total
563,147,440 (531,923,520) 31,223,920
563,147,440 (531,923,520 31,223,920
(123,440,879) 113,033,748 (10,407,131)

(27,107,402) 26,596,177 (511,225)
(150,548,281) 139,629,925 {10,9138,356)

{27,107,401) 26,596,175 (511,226}
(177,655,682) 166,226,100 {11,429,582)
412,599,159 (392,293,595) 20,305,564
385,491,758 {(365,697,420) 19,794,338

Amortisation of goodwill is included in “Selling and administrative expenses” in the income

statements. Amortisation of negative goodwill is included in “Other income” in the income

statements,

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

13.1 Details of associates;

(Unit: Bahd)
Consolidated financial staiements
Nature of Country of Sharehokding Carying amounts based on
Company® nang business incorporation percentage Cost equily method
2007 2006 2ca7 2006 2007 2006
(6 (%)
Ownrep Project Services Pte. Lid Ceased aperation Sinpapore 50 50 18,109,295 18,109,295 -
Lijlang Banyan Tree Hotel Co. Ltd  Hotel operations China 49 - 348,413,839 269,105,050
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Company’s name

{Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Share of loss from investments in

associafes during the year

Ownrep Project Services Pte. Ltd.
Lijiang Banyan Tree Hotel Co, Ltd,

13.2 Summarised financial information of associates

2007

(4,954,548)

2006

(Unit: Million Beht)

Total revennes for Nt loss for (he
Paid-up capital as at Totslassetsasat  Total liabilitis as at the year ended year ended
Company's name 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 3 December
207 2006 2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Owroep Project Serviees Ple. Ltd,  SGD 2 8GD?2 - 10.9 10.9 - - ©.1) (o.n
millien million
Lijlang Banyan Teee Hotel Co. Ltd, USD 18,4 - 1,3133 - 614 - 246.6 - {10.1) -
wmililon

The value of investments in associated companies, accounted for under the equity method

was caleulated based on unaudited financial statements of the companies for the year ended

31 December 2007 prepared by its tnanagement.

13.3 The Company recognised its share of losses from the investment in Ownrep Project

Services Pte. Ltd. until the value of the investment reached zero, Subsequent losses incurred

have not been recognised in the Company’s accounts since the Company has no
pany

obligations, whether legal or constructive, to make any payments on behalf of the associate.

OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006

Invesiment in available-for-sale securities
Universal Starch Public Compeny Limited " 50,829,795 50,829,795 23,850,000 23,850,000
Unrealised loss on investment (28,856,095) (28,856,095) (10,175,999) (10,175,999}
Investment, at market price 21,973,700 21,973,700 13,674,001 13,674,001
Investinents in other companies

- Bibace Investments Ltd 188,424,686 188,424,686 - -

- ‘Tropical Resorts Limited 1,000 1,000 - -
Total investments in other companics 188,425,686 188,425,686 - -
Total 210,399,386 210,399,386 13,674,001 13,674,001

“ previously named “Thai Wah Public Company Limited”
® previously named “TRL Investments Ltd"”
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As at 31 December 2007, certain buildings and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaries
have been fully depreciated but still in use. The original cost, before deducting accumulated

depreciation, of those assets amounted to Baht 1,905.0 million. (Separate financial statements:

Baht 302.8 million).
Property, plant and equipment

Disposals during the year include LBTH after LBTL divested its interest from 70.00 pecent to
49.07 percent on 1 January 2007 when LBTH’s status changed from a subsidiary company fo an

associated company.

The hotel properties and land were reappraised by an independent professional appraisal
company in its report dated 27 November 2007, The revaluation was conducted using the
“Income Approach” basis for hotel properties and a “Fair Matket Value” basis for land.

The Company and its subsidiaries have pledged land with an area of approximately 1,078 Rai
(2006: 1,073 Rai), at fair value of Baht 7,744 million (2006: Baht 3,437 million), and hotel
buildings at fair value of Baht 6,785 million (2006: Baht 3,661 million) as collateral against
credit facilities received from financial institutions (Separate financial statements: Baht 892
million, 2006: Bahi 299 million).

Land awaiting development

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, land awaiting development in Phuket province of
approximately 45 Rai, at book value of Baht 484 million, has been pledged as collateral against

credit facilities received from financial institutions,
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16, LEASEHOLD RIGHTS

{Unit; Baht)

Land Hotel units Total
Cost
As at 31 December 2005 38,308,918 104,789,197 143,098,115
Disposal - (25,345,030)  (25,345,030)
Exchange rate adjustment 2006 (4,961,752)  (10,4R9,962)  (15451,714)
As at 31 December 2006 33,347,166 68,954,205 102,301,371
Disposals and adjustments (33,347,166)  (15,704,139)  (49,051,305)
Exchange rate adjustment 2007 - 71,217,525 7,217,525
As at 31 December 2007 - 60,467,591 60,467,591
Accumulated amortisation
As at 31 December 2005 1,509,470 15,783,530 17,293,000
Disposals and adjustments - (5,090,667) (5,090,667
Amortisation of 2006 891,129 ' 4,878,968 5,770,097
As at 31 December 2006 2,400,599 15,571,831 17,972,430
Disposals and adjusiments (2,400,599) (3,624,032) (6,024,631}
Amortisation of 2007 - 3,451,071 3,451,071
As at 31 December 2007 . 15,398,870 15,398,870
Net
As at 31 December 2006 30,946,567 53,382,374 84,328,041
As at 31 December 2007 - 45,068,721 45,068,721

Leasehold rights of hotel units is amortised over the term of the lease of 20 years from July 2002
to June 2022,
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17, SHORT-TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Short-term loans from financial institutions represent promissory notes with maturity dates
within 3 months, subject to interest at rates of 2.00 to 6.35 percent per annum (31 December

2006: 2,00 percent per annum).

These short-term loans from financial institutions are secured by the mortgage of plots of land
and hotel buildings of the Company and subsidiaries, as described in Note 15 and by the

guarantee provided by subsidiaries.

18. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{Unit: Baht)

Consolidated financial statements ~ Separate {inancial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
Accrued expenses 388,969,780 381,279,315 96,564,340 59,912,031
Advance receipts from customers 443,615,086 200,135,982 28,610,237 9,954,988
Other acoounts payable 135,517,838 87,799,025 40,879,379 16,104,220
Construction payable 223,021,100 147,815,950 108,814,867 -
Service charge payable to hotel staff 54,840,266 50,899,571 9,652,500 9,378,838
Valve added tax payable 68,008,339 79,380,108 - 13,116,990
Accrued rental to villa owners 83,532,679 36,809,812 - -
Unearned income 1,534,640 1,658,737 - -
Total _1,404,939,728 985,778,540 284,821,823 108,467,067

19. LONG - TERM LOANS

(Unit; Baht}

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006

Secured 3,305,261,743  3,728,868,743 632,000,000 772,000,000
Long-term loans are repayable as follows:

Within ons year 824,914,000 648,597,000 233,000,000 140,000,000

Béuveen one and two years 862,165,000 824,914,000 266,000,000 233,000,000

Between three and five years 1,285,982,000{ | 1,882,384,000 133,000,000 395,000,000

Over five years 332,200,743 372,973,143 - -

2,480,347,743  3,080,271,743 399,000,000 632,000,000

Total 3,305,261,743  3,728,868,743 632,000,000 772,000,000
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Long-term loans consist of the following:

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit; Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007

2006

2007 2006

The Copipany }
(1) Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 892 million

repayable quarterly from July 2005 to April 2010,

a1 an jnlerest rate as follows:

2006 s MLR per annum

2007 : MLR per annum, MLR less 1 percent per
annum and saving deposit rate plus 1.25
percent per annum

2008 onwards : MLR less 1 percent per annum and saving

deposit rate plus 1,25 percent per anniimn 632,000,000

Subsidiaries

@

3

cH

&Y

{®)

0

Baht loan frotn a bank, with a facility of Baht 450 million,
repayable quarterly from February 2003 to October 2007,
at an Interest rate of 2 percent per annum during 2006 - 2007 -
Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 200 million,
at an interest rate as follows:
2006 : 2 and 4 percent per antiim
2007 : 2 and 4 percent per annum and MLR less 1

percent per anhuin
2008 onwards : 2 percent per agnum and MLR less 1 percent

per annum 125,000,000
Baht loan from s bank, with a facility of Baht 50 million,
repayable quarterly from June 2005 to March 2007
at an interest rate of 2 and 3.5 percent per annum during 2006 -
2007 -
Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 260 millien
repayable quarterly from April 2006 to January 2010,
at an interest rate of MLR less 2 percent per annum or 3 month
fixed deposit rate plus 2 percent per anvum whichever is higher 210,000,000
Raht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 600 million
repayable quarterly from September 2006 to June 2011,
at an interest rate of MLR Tess 2 percent per annum or 3 month
fixed deposit rate plus 2 percent per ennum whichever is higher 510,000,000
Baht Joan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 million
repayable guarterly from Octeber 2006 to January 2009,
at an inferest rate of MER less 1.5 percent per annum 50,000,000
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772,000,000

100,000,000

70,000,000

6,250,000

245,000,000

576,000,000

90,000,000

632,000,000 772,000,000




(8) Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 180 million

)

repayable quarterly from April 2006 to Janvary 2009, at an

interest rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum or 3 month

fixed deposit rate plus 2 percent per annum whichever is higher

Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 million

repayable quarterly from March 2067 to June 2009, at an

interest rate of MLR less 1.5 percent per annum or 3 month

fixed deposit tate plus 2 percent per anoum whichever is higher

{10) Baht loan from a bank, with a facllity of Baht 1,004 miilion,

repayable quarterly from December 2005 to December 2013,

at an interast raie as follows:

2006

2007

2008 onwards

- MLR per annum and MLR less I percent per

annum

: MLR less 1 percent per annum and saving

deposit rate plus 1,25 percent per annum

MLR less 0,5 and | percent per annwm and

saving deposit rate plus 1.25 percent per annum

(11} Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Balt 300 millien

repayable quarterly from March 2007 to Juns 2011,

at an interest rate of MLR less 1 percent per annum

(12} Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 220 miflion

repayable quarterly from June 2007 fo June 201}, at an interest

rate as follows:

2006 and 2007 :

2008 onwards

MLR less 1.5 percent per annum or 3 month
fixed deposit rate plus 2,5 percent per annum,

whichever is higher

: MLR less 1 and 1.5 percent per annutu ot

3 month fixed deposit rate plus 2.5 percent per

aneum, whichever is higher

{13) Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 100 milliea,

repayable quarterly from July 2008 to April 2014, at an

interest rate as foltows:

2006

2007

2008 onwards

: MLR per anoum and MLR less 1 percent per

anium

: MLR less | percent per annum and saving

deposit rate plus 1.25 percent per annum

: MLR less 0,5 and 1 percent per annum and

saving deposit rate plus 1.25 percent per annum

(14) Baht of loan from a bank, with a facitity of Baht 90 milllon

repayable quarterly from March 2008 to March 2010,

at an interest rate of MLR less 1 percent per annum

-5 -

Consolidated finencial statements

{Unit; Baht)

Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006
110,000,000 150,000,000 -
70,000,000 100,000,000 -
809,511,743 910,608,743 -
260,000,000 300,000,000 -
208,756,000 155,010,000 -
100,000,000 100,000,000 -
90,000,000 60,000,000 -
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(Unit: Baht}

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

2007 2006 2007 2006

(15) Baht loan from a bank, with a facility of Baht 1,145 miltien.
The first facility of Baht 1,000 million is repayable quarterly
from October 2009 to July 2019, at an inferest rate as follows:
2007 + MLR less 1.5 percent per annum and saving
depesit rate plus 1.25 percent per annum
2008 onwards : MLR per annum and MLR less 0.5 and 1.5
percent per anuun and saving deposit rate
plus 1.25 percent per annum
The second facility of Baht 145 million has not yet beent
utitised, 130,000,000 - -

Tetal tong-term loans 3,305,261,743  3,728,868,743 632,000,000 772,600,000

MLR; Minimun Lending Rate
MMR: Money Market Rate

The loans are secured by the mortgage of plofs of land, land awaiting development and all hotel
buildings of the Company and subsidiaries, as described in Note 15. The loan in (1) above is also
secured by the pledge of the 10,188,203 ordinary shares of Thai Wah Plaza Limited, as described
in Note 12. The loans in (2), (3), (5), (7) and (11) above are guaranteed by subsidiaries. Thé loan
in (5), (11) and (12} sbove is guaranteed by the Company.

The loan agreements of the Company and subsidiaries stipulate that they must comply with

covenants relating to various matters, including the maintenance of financial ratios.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 4 July 2007, the Company’s extraordinary general meeting approved an increase of the
registered capital by Baht 1,270,052,150 from Baht 846,701,430 to Baht 2,116,753,580 divided
into 211,675,358 ordinary shares by an issue of 127,005,215 new ordinary shares at the par value
of Baht 10 each, The allotment was offered by way of rights issue to the existing shareholders at
the ratio of 1 existing shate to 1.5 new ordinary shares at the offering price of Baht 10 per share,

On § July 2007, the Ministry of Commerce accepted the registration for the increase of the
Company’s registered capital from Baht 846,701,430 to Baht 2,116,753,580 following with the
registration of its paid-up capital from Baht 846,701,430 to Baht 1,666,827,010 on 27 July 2007,
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21.

22,

23

24.

CAPITAL RESERVE

The capital reserve relates to the accounting of assets in subsidiaries at their fair values as at the

acquisition date and can not be used for dividend payments.

STATUTORY RESERVE

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is
required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting
accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the

registered capital, The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration represents the benefits paid to the Company’s directors in accordance
with Section 90 of the Public Limited Companies Act, exclusive of salaries and related benefits

payable to executive directors,
EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE BONUS PLAN

The Group introduced the plans during the year for selected executives. A description of the

plans is set out below.

erformance Bonus Plan (“PBP”

The PBP is a cash based incentive plan where an initial award is defermined for selected

executives of the Group based on the executive’s strategic contribution, position and individual
performance. The final bonus is dependent on achievement levels, The bonus awarded varies

from O o 2 fimes the initial award.
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25,

26.

27.

Restricted Bonus Plan (“RBP”

The RBP is a cash based incentive plan where an initial award is determined for selected
executives of the Group and the executive fulfilling a further 2-year service requirement, The
initial award amount will be granted to the executives on a contingent basis based on the
executive’s individual performance over the previous financial period and position level in the
Company. At the end of the 2-year performance period, the bonus released to the executive will |
depend on how the individual performs relative to the targets set. Depending on achievement
levels, the bonus varies from 0 to 1.5 times the initial award, Once the final award has been
determined, half of it will vest, with subsequent one-quarters vesting over the next 2 years, The

award is subject to the absolute discretion of the Remuneration Committee (“RC").

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED COSTS

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
- 2007 2006 2007 2006
Number of emplayees at the end of year (persons) 4,016 3,755 611 573
Employee costs for the year (Thousand Baht) 1,292,544 1,132,926 283,412 247,125
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is caleulated by dividing the net income for the year by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

PROVIDENT IFFUND

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fand
in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Contributions are made to the fund by
both employees and the Company and its subsidiaries and will be paid to employees upon

termination in accordance with the rules of the Company and its subsidiaries’ provident fund.
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28.

29

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries contributed to provident funds as follows:

{Unit: Million Baht)

Fund Manager Company's contribulion in
. Hotel staff’ Office staff 2007 2005
Laguna Resorts & Hotels Public MFC Asset Management Ple, MEC Asset Management Plc. 6.2 5.5
Company Limited
Laguna Grande Limited Ametican International MFC Asset Management Ple, 1.2 1.0
Assurance Company Limited
Bangtao Grande Limited Siam Comniercinl Bank Ple, - 2.1 24
Laguna Beach Club Limited Bangkok Bank Ple. Bangksk Bank Ple, 1.8 1.3
Laguna Banyan Tree Limited Asnerican Intemnational Assurence MFC Asset managenient Plg, 35 3.2
Company Limited
Banyan Tree Gallery (Singapore) Pte - Central Provident Fund Board 25 2.2
L
Banyan Tree Gallery (Thailand) - MEC Asset Managsment Ple. 0.6 0.4
Limited .
Laguna Service Conspany Limited - MFC Asset Managsment Ple. 2.0 1.6
Laguna Holiday Club Limited - MFC Asset Management Pic, 19 0.8
Thai Wah Mlaza Limited TISCO Assels Manngement MFC Asset Management Ple, 4.8 4.7
Ccmpany Limited
DIVIDENDS
Dividends declared in 2007 consisted of:
Approved by Total dividends  Dividend per share
Million Baht Baht
Dividends on 2006 Annual General Meeting of the
retained earnings shareholders on 25 April 2007 211,68 2.5
COMMITMENTS

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2007, the Company and its subsidiaries have capital commitments as follows:

() The Company and its subsidiaries have commitments in respect of constructing new and

renovating existing hotel properties amounting to Baht 14.7 million (2006: Baht 366,7

million}.
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30

31

(b) Four subsidiaries have commitments that relate to projects to develop properties for sale -

amounting to approximately Baht 706 million (2006: Baht 704.4 million).

Operating agreements

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into operating agreements with certain companies
whereby these companies are fo operate the Company’s and its subsidiaries® hotels and golf
business. In consideration for such services, the Company and subsidiaries are committed to pay
remuneration at the rates, terms and basis specified in the agreements. These agreements are

summarised as follows:

Company Business unit Operator Contraet perfod Fees

Lapuna Resorts & Hotels Dusit Laguna Resort Dusit Thani Public Company 1,10,1892 - 3092012 - Basic management foo 1 2 percent of total revenue

Publie Company Limited Limited” « Incentive fee 1 5 percent of gross operaling profit
Banglao Grande Limited Sheraton Grende Lopuna  Sheraton Overseas Manapement  11,1,1989 - 31,12.2012 - Basic management fee : 2 percent of total revenue
Phukel Corporation (8) - Incentve fee ¢ 7.5 percent of gross operating profit

Laguna Grande Limited Laguna Phuket Golf Club Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts  1,10,1992 - 31,12.2014 - Basic management fee : 3 percent of total revenus
Ple, Limited (b} « Incentive fee 1 10 percent of gross cperating profit

Laguna Banyan Tret Limited  Banyan Tree Phuket Baniyan Tree Hotels and Resorls 15,1995 = 31122015 - Basic management fee : 2 percent of total revenue
Ple. Limited (c) -Tacentive fee : 7.5 percent of grass operating profit

Thai Wah Plaza Limited Banyzn Tree Bangkok  Banyan Tree Hotels and Resorts 1,1,2002 - 31,12,2021 - Basic management fee: 3 pescent of total revenue

Ple. Limited (d) - Incentive fee: 10 percent of gross operaling profit

(z)  Operator has exercised its optfon to extend for 10 years as the required conditions have been met.

(b)  Operator has optfon ta cxtend for one additiona] perlod of 10 years,

(c)  Operator has exercised option e extend to 31.12.2015 (a5 notified on 28 July 2004) and has an option to extend for a further 10 years,
()  Operator has cption to extend for one additional pericd of 20 years.

# Previcusly named “Dusit Holels and Resorts Company Limited”

BANK GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2007, there were bank guarantees amounting to Baht 47.7 million (Separate
financial statements: Baht 3.2 million) issued to various parties on behalf of the Company and its
subsidiaties, mainly provided for the usage of electricity, other utilitics and felecommunication

channels (2006: Baht 43,5 million, Separate financial statements: Baht 2.8 million).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company and it subsidiaries’s business operations involve-three principal segments: (1) hotel
operations (2) office rental and (3) property development business. These operations are mainly

carried on in Thailand. Below is the consolidated financial information of the Company and its

snbsidiaries by segment.
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Revenue from extemal
customers
Intersegment revenues

Total revenues

Segment income

Other income

Exchange gains (loss)

Unallgeated expenses:

Selling and administrative
EXPENSES

Share of loss from invesiments
in associated cnmpar;y

Interest expenses

Corporale income {ax

Minority interest

Hetincome

Property, plant and
equipment - net

Tolal assets

Revenne from external
customess
Intersegment revenues

Total revenues

Segment income (loss)

Qther income

Enchangs gains (loss)

Unallocated expenses:

Selling and adminisirative
expenses

Interest expenses

Carpotate Income tax

Minority inferest

Het income

Property, plant and
equipment » net

Total assets

(Unit: Million Baht)

For the year ¢aded 31 December 2007

Elimaination of

Hotel Gallery Total Hotel Office Troperty inler-segment
Business Operations Others Operations Renial Development TEVenLes Consolidation
3,665 243 214 4,122 68 2,820 - 7,010
208 61 [4)] 268 20 - (288) -
3,873 304 213 4,390 38 2,820 {288) 7,010
861 3 41 905 12 1,103 - 2,020
93 1 94 - 34 - 28
20 (V] - 19 - (10} - 9
(373)
(3)
lerl})
{189)
"
1,290
16,579 28 1,313 17,920 694 53 - 18,667
19,640 281 1,386 21,307 716 2,991 - 25,014
(Unit: Million Baht)
For the year ended 31 December 2006
Elimination of
Hotel Gallery Total Hotel Office Property infee-segment
Business Operations Others QOperations Rental Development TEvenugs Consplidation
3217 264 108 3,589 8t 2,328 - 5,958
171 42 - 213 i4 - (227 -
3,388 306 108 3,802 95 2,328 (20 5,998
528 29 17 514 {9) 1,125 - 1,699
46 1 - 47 - 22 - 69
104 (@) - 100 - (12) - 88
(282}
(2023
(228)
(2)
1,113
8,592 11 1,419 10,022 421 34 - 10,477
10,841 230 1,477 12,548 jl4 2,046 - 14,908
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Transfer prices between business segments are as set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.
32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
32.1 Financial risk management policies

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 48
“Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade accounts receivable, loans, investments, short-term and long-term loans.
The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed

in described below,
Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade
accounts receivable from the hotel, space rental, and property development businesses.
However, due to the large number and diversity of the entities comprising the Company
and its subsidiaries’ customer base, the Company and its subsidiaries do not anticipate

material losses from debt collection.
Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure fo interest rate risk relate primarily to their
deposits with financial institutions, long—tenﬁ trade accounts receivable and bank
overdrafts and loans. However, since most of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities have floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market
interest rates, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal. The Company and its
subsidiaries do not use derivative financial instruments to hedge such risk (the detail of

long-term loans ate set out in Note 19).

Significant financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2007, classified by type of
interest rate are summarised in the fable below, with those financial assets and liabilities
carrying fixed interest rates further classified based on the contractual repricing or

maturity date (whichever is earlier).
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Consalidated financial statements

Fixed interest rates
Within Over Floating Non-Inierest Pixed
1year 1-5 years 5 years interast rale bearing Total Interest rate
(Million Baht) (% pa)
Finanelal asseis
Cash equivalents {excluding cash) 28 - - 1,505 - 1,533 2-225%
Restricted deposits at finnncial
institution 2 - - - - 2 2%
Long-term trade
accounts teceivable 199 137 - 11 - 37 9% and 12%
Long-term loan {0 associated -
company 132 - 167 - - .29 6% and 7.25%
Leng-tenn loans to employees - - - 34 - 34 -
Einznciz] HabtHtics
Short-term loans . 637 - - 225 - 862 2%
Long-term leans from
financial institutions 5 . - 3,300 - 3,305 2%

Seperate financial siatements

Fixed Interest rales

Within Over Floating Non-Inferest Fixed
1 year 1-5 yoars 5years interest rate bearing Tolal Interest rate
(Million Baht) {%pa)
Financial agsets
Cash equivalents (excluding cash) - - - 856 - 856 -
Long-term loans to subsidiaries - - - 1481 - 1,481 -
Long-term loans to employees - - - 11 - 11 -
Finanelgl liabjlities
Short-term loans 415 - - 55 - 470 2%
Long-term [oans from
subsidiaries - - - 1,040 - 1,040 -
Long-term loans from
financial institnilons - - - 612 - 632 -

Foreign currency risk

The Company and ifs subsidiaries’ exposure to foreign currency risk relates primarily to
their reccivables, payables and loans which are denominated in foreign cumrencies. In
addition to those transactional exposures, the Company is also exposed to the effect of
foreign exchange movements on its investment in foreign subsidiaries and associates,

which currently are not hedged by any derivative financial instrument.
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The Company and a subsidiary have enfered into forward exchange contracts to hedge

their hotel revenues which are denominated in foreign cwrrencies, Forward exchange

contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2007 are summarised below.

Foreign currency assets/liabilities

Amount Forwaid rate for
. Foreign cutrency bought amount bought Maturity
(Baht per US dollar)

The Company

US dollar [2.0 million 41,57 USD 1.2 million due quarterly from 31 Januvary
2008 to 30 April 2008 and USD 1.6 million due
quarterly from 31 July 2008 to 31 Oclober 2009

US dollar 3.3 million 40.03 USD 1.7 million due quarierly from 31 January
2010 to 30 April 2010

Subsidiaries

US dollar 15.0  million 34.01 USD 0.8 million due quarterly from 31 March

2008 to 31 December 2008, USD 0.9 million
due quarterly from 31 March 2009 (o 31
December 2009, USD 1,0 million due quarterly
from 3] March 2010 to 31 December 2010 and
USD 1.1 miltion due quarterly from 31 March
2011 fo 31 December 2011

As at 31 December 2007, the outstanding balances of the Company and its subsidiaries®

financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

Foreign currency
US dollar

Singapore dollar
Philippines peso

Consolidated financial

(Unit: Thousand)

Separate financial

statements statements
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
19,042 2,032 2,148 4
967 3,696 - 441
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32.2 Fair value of financial instruments

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear
floating interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the

amounts presented in the balance sheets.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled
~ between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is
determined by reference to the market price of the financial instrument or by using an

appropriate valuation technique, depending on the nature of the instrument.
33, LITIGATION

A case was brought o the Southern Bangkok Civil Court in which the Company is defendant,
Upon the plaint, the plaintiff asks the Court to revoke the resolution of the Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders of the defendant No. 1/2007 held on 4 July 2007 (the “EGM”) and to
cancel the registration of the aforementioned resolution on the grounds that the defendant and the
chairman of the EGM did not allow the plaintiff to attend the EGM. The plaintiff is not a
sharcholder of the Company. The Company believes the EGM was duly held and approved the

resclution in compliance with its Articles of Association and applicable laws.
This case is currently pending at the Court of First Instance.
33, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
26 February 2008.
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